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Financial Highlights

Bl 7% i &

RMB’000 2020 2019
AR¥FT — 2T —T—hF
Revenue EER 275,987 258,158
Cost of sales & R AR (167,887) (143,137)
Gross profit Syl 108,100 115,021
Selling & distribution costs HE Ko KA (84,476) (104,724)
Administrative expenses TR X (27,332) (30,570)
Loss from operations KR (2,804) (12,897)
Loss before taxation A E1E (4,038) (15,164)
Income tax credit Ffr 15 i [0 8¢ - 9,064
Loss for the year attributable to KRBIHEB AEMLZ

owners of the Company FREE (4,038) (6,100)
Gross margin EF X 39.2% 44.6%
Net loss ratio FEBE (1.5%) (2.4%)
Loss per share (RMB cents) BRER (AR
Basic HAK (0.1277) (0.1929)
Diluted i (0.1277) (0.1929)

Revenue by Product Category
WA R E @ E R 2
90.3% 90.7%

(RMB’000)
(AR®T )

8.6%

rg

Shampoo & hair-care products

HEREEM

Other household & personal care products

Htt AR EAEEER

Skincare products
EEEM

Total
A%t

249,230

24,868

1,889

275,987

234,142

22,218

1,798

258,158




B E (£8)
Revenue by Brand Category
WAZRBBER D
94.6% 93.5%

FIER(REEZEREBRATE —Z-2FFRH

Financial Highlights (Continued)

RMB’000

2.7%

0.7%

0.2%

2019

AR®TT —B— A
a B N
awang
HE 260,955 241,488
o Litao
EE 7,623 7,529
Royal Wind
BaE 4,923 6,986
Herborn
REw 1,950 1,844
Little King
e NEE 536 311
E;T.l 275,987 258,158
. = 7
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yNGIE=T
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BEE

MITES

R ROR (£ /%)
RS (EREHTTE)

= E 1A oPa

BIUFRITESE

ZR 12 & 18 < php, cPa, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (P.E.), MCIAD
IR i &8 Foa, cPa

ImEt

EnkEREEEES

Z8 12 I8 18 =4 prp, cPA FCCA, FCIS, FCS (P.E), MCIAD
(£/E)
RE L Fca, cra

TEE+
FNEES
RE L% rca cra(EE)

ZR1Z & 18 = prp, cPA, FCCA, FOIS, FCS (P.E), MClA

BR IE #5

REEZES

bR BUR (£ /)
ZR1Z & 15 = prp, cPA, FCCA, FOIS, FCS (P.E.), MClA
R L FcA cPa
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Corporate Information (Continued)
nalEil ()
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”), |
present the audited annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Board hereby reports that the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB276.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 6.9% from approximately
RMB258.2 million for 2019. The operating loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 reduced to approximately RMB2.8
million as compared with an operating loss of approximately
RMB12.9 million for 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the net loss of the Group
was approximately RMB4.0 million, as compared with a net loss of
approximately RMB6.1 million for 2019.

For further information on the operating performance of the Group,
please refer to the “Financial Review” section of this annual report.

e

FHEESE

ERNEHHNERTZRR

RAAZRERBIEBE(EB)ERBRA
AExARDzESS((EE®)) M
PEREERAQALEWNE QA (5B
(AEEDEE T _ZEF+_A=+—
HIEFEMNRKEEZTFEEE-

EZeRENREAEEHE_T_ZTF
+ A=+ BULEFENBREEXBENA
ARE276 0B E L R_ZE—NLFRAH
M ANREE2582H B LI N T #6.9% °
AREBEE_ZE_TF+_A=+—H
HTFEHBEEFEBREENAARE
8RBT M-E—NFRHBKLLEER
HAREI295 8T -

AEBEBEE T _ZTF+_-_A=+—H
FTFESBFEEONAARKIOESE
T M-ZE-NAFRBEBFEBRLOA
RE61BHBETT -

ARARBEREXEFMAEN F2H
AEEHRENMHEEEIED
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FTREIREE (E)

During the year under review, the Group continued to operate under
the value-chain-oriented business model, which enabled the Group
to control the cost of sales and operating costs at a sustainable level.

China has been very successful in containing the pandemic which
has played a very important role to bring back business economic
activities much quicker than other countries. There have been
effective policy supports in terms of both fiscal policy and monetary
policy, leading to an increase in China’s exports. These policy
supports have been big drivers of China’s notable economic rebound
in 2020.

It was reported that in the 2021’s National People’s Congress, the
government has targeted GDP growth of at least 6.0% in 2021 as the
country looks to shore up its economic fundamentals from the fallout
of the coronavirus pandemic, and that going forward, China needs to
make proactive fiscal policy more efficient and sustainable, while
keeping prudent, flexible and targeted monetary policy, that operates
at a reasonable and appropriate level.

For further information on the outlook of the Group, please refer to
the “Outlook” section of this report.

Looking forward, we plan to focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the midst of a
volatile business environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience in
both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales growth
momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence in
the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue to focus on
strengthening the business model and positioning to acquire market
shares from domestic and international competitors, maintaining a
multi-brand and multi-product strategy in HPC sectors, and
becoming a leader in the branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

REOBEFEFER AEBEEENTEERE
B BRI EARK B E S HE X
AR EERA MR FERNKE -

FEAEEHIRIENEIETKY  BET
FRFEENER CHXEEIPLLH
B RERKE - PEREHET AR H
BBRMEBEHRRIFT LB RET
HAgER - ELERRETFEE_T_-F
FERAKEBEABRENERHES S -

—E - —FHE2BEBARRERRE LW
TEHREEL BRALERFEE KR
EARTHEEPRIREE = —
FHCGDPERERZAZL6.0% - BREXR
Ko EEEHEEHEMERMATFE
MERMBREER R RIFEFE B
BN EERER  UFEEBTE
—EAEBRBEERKFE-

ERASERENE—FER
ABENTRE]IFD

F2H

RERR ETRENEERRED 7
MBERRMEB BB RASPERT
HestEHMmE  NEEBRESTRAN
HERFRERBEAERTREIEEL
BOEEER MEHSERZBEMNA
MEN UERRAREEHAEENE
Lo EMME ASESEERE R
BAREM RIBMTIHIEE R RDE
BRSNS FHF R RE & EAEE
B oh oo W N E fn % AL B0 15 8 SRBR Ko K
RPRERENEAEREMBEECE -

EHEUERE RRREFENTHHER
RXBAEENZERR TP HE
BRIT-BERALNEE  BUARLOH
W e

PR RRUR
T

B - —F=ZA=+H



FIER(EE)ERERLIA —Z-FTFFR

Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

Since late 2020, the coronavirus pandemic has had a great impact
on the daily lives of people. Health awareness has significantly
increased across China and the demand for personal and household
hygiene products remained strong. Bawang purposefully rolled out
value-for-money family size packaging series to satisfy the
consumers’ demand for hair-care products.

To satisfy the consumers’ needs for additional household and
personal care (“HPC”) products to protect against the viral infection
in the midst of the coronavirus pandemic, the Group rolled out a new
Bawang-branded antiseptic sanitary product series comprising
disinfectant floor cleaner liquid, sanitising laundry detergents, liquid
handwash, and anti-bacterial hand gel during the year under review.
To enhance the revenue, we tailor-made some exclusive Bawang-
branded products for supply to a group of selected quality
distributors for sale.

SR Bl 5 i

e JEI)E

BE-Z_ZTEFREE FEAERBEEX
MITIHAPMNBELERELETERY
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

E 1R 251 5R b 1 i (§8)

During the year under review, through cross-industry cooperation, we
successfully rolled out gift-pack product series during the Chinese
online shopping festivals such as 3.8 Women'’s Day, 6.18 Festival, 7.7

Festival, and Double 11 Festival, which drew the attention of
consumers and were well-received by them. At the same time, we
displayed our products inside selected metro stations in Guangzhou
and Shenzhen. We gave away some Bawang-branded testers
through on-site interactive games. The Group also conducted
publicity campaigns by advertising on mega-display screens in
selected Guangzhou metro stations.

During the year under review, the Group appointed the winner of the
7th Annual Young Popular Idol, Ms. Sun Rui (f4R), as our short-term
image and brand ambassador for our branded products for the
purpose of creating a young and energetic brand image as so to
attract the attention of young female consumers.

During the year under review, advertisements of Bawang-branded
products were showcased in lifts of certain residential districts in first-
tier cities such as Guangzhou, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Zhengzhou. The
Group also made good use of popular social media platforms to
increase the publicity and exposures of our branded products to the
consumers.

Additionally, we continued to make use of our sales channel for
college students. Leveraging the “College Students Advertising
Festival” (KZ4 E4#{f7&r) and cooperating with some colleges,
we introduced Bawang-branded products to the campuses to
publicise and educate young people in understanding the concept of
hair-care by using herbal shampoo products.

B AR 7 g
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

E 1L 51 5R b 13 i (£8)

As part of the Group’s initiatives to participate in corporate social
responsibility and public welfare activities, the Group made donations
of our HPC products to Wuhan Hongshan Fangcang Hospital, which
was dedicated for treatment of COVID-19, for the daily use by
resident medical staff members and patients. To publicise our
corporate mission and to establish our brand image, we donated our
branded products to elderly care centres in Guangzhou, the schools
for peasants and workers, and various communities.

As at 31 December 2020, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 838 distributors and six KA retailers,
covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China. Furthermore,
the Bawang-branded products were also sold in Hong Kong,
Thailand and Malaysia.

During the year under review, the Group enhanced product formula
and upgraded packaging to promote new Royal Wind branded
shampoo products primarily for the online sales channel. As at 31
December 2020, the Royal Wind brand distribution network
comprised approximately 178 distributors and six KA retailers,
covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China.

The Litao products mainly comprise shower gels and laundry
detergents, which target consumers living in the second-tier or third-
tier cities in China. The Group’s goal is to maintain market coverage
in the traditional channel. As at 31 December 2020, the Litao
products distribution network comprised approximately 54
distributors, covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

E 1R 251 5R b 1 i (§8)

The Herborn Chinese herbal skin-care product series targets white-
collar ladies in the age range from 25 to 45 who have relatively high
net incomes and who are dedicated to pursuing a healthy and natural
lifestyle. We sold the products through our online sales channel and
staff or group purchase.

SO = JUSEHE T 8 B

MHKFRE

*x K Kk K

Fra AL oA [
OX0¥ -1

The Group has established 12 online retailing platforms for our
Bawang, Royal Wind and Herborn branded products, of which two
were established during the year under review.

For the year under review, we obtained and/or renewed and/or
possessed the certificates and/or recognitions as follows:

— 10 Bawang-branded Chinese herbal shampoos and hair-care
series products have been recognised as “The 2019 New High-
Tech Products in Guangdong Province (R4 = 3 HiiE )"
by the Guangdong Provincial New Hi-tech Enterprise
Association (BXRE 2 EH M ERE) in December 2019 for a
period of three years until the end of 2022;

— the permit for production of cosmetic products, which was
issued by Guangdong Provincial Food and Drug Administration,
remains valid until March 2026;

— our production process for hair-care and skin-care products
has been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2022
as to meet the requirements of US FDA CFSAN by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2008;
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

our production process for hair-care and skin-care products
has been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2022
as to meet the requirements of 1ISO22716 by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2007;

we were recognised as the “Excellent Partner” by the Panyu
Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China in January
2020;

we have been accredited as a “Committee Unit” until December
2023 by Guangdong Food and Drug Technology Association
for Evaluation & Certification;

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd was awarded “Caring &
Charitable Enterprise” jointly by Trend Setting Welfare
Organisation (& [E1EAzH4%%) and Guangzhou Qianjin Street
Social Welfare Service Station (BN ATEE TARFS) in
September 2020;

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd was awarded “2019 Key Tax
Payer — Silver Prize” by the People’s Government of Jianggao
Town, Baiyun District, Guangzhou in December 2020; and

our Bawang brand was awarded a certification as “China Trend,
China Product” by the organising committee of Jinmai Awards
(&2 %) in December 2020.

B2 B 51w b 53 il (48)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

E 1R 251 5R b 1 i (§8)
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Outlook sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

1. Risks Relating to Our Industry

In recent years, it has been common for the Mainland
manufacturing enterprises to face continuously rising labour
costs and difficulties in employing skilled labour. Our Group’s
strategy in response is to reduce the production costs. From
the start of 2020, almost all business enterprises in the China
have been suffering from the unprecedented coronavirus
pandemic, and the Group’s operations were temporarily
disrupted in the first quarter with financial performance being
impacted to a certain degree. Additional prevention and control
measures by the government have been implemented to
contain the spread of coronavirus, which also impacted the
Group’s operations. Whilst the Group will strictly follow all these
regulatory measures laid down by the government, the Group
had restarted its operations since 10 February 2020, and will
make every effort to recover from any adverse impacts on its
operations and economic impacts on itself and its customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies following a weak economic performance. To minimize
credit risks, the management of the Group has appointed
dedicated staff members to handle procedures for determining
credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures,
to ensure that follow-up actions with all receivables are taken in
a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews the collectibility
of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to ensure that
sufficient impairment losses are recognised for uncollectible
debts. For the year ended 31 December 2020, no bad debts
were recognised by the Group.

3. Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of
cash flow. The Group’s management will continue to closely
monitor the use of cash.

4. Currency Risks

Sales to overseas countries denominated in foreign currencies
expose the Group to foreign exchange risks. The Group closely
manages and monitors foreign exchange risks to ensure that
appropriate measures are taken in a timely manner. The Group
will consider using hedging in respect of foreign currencies to
mitigate relevant risks as and when appropriate.

Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environment arising
from its business operations. During the year under review, the Group
strictly complied with the local environmental regulations of the PRC.
The production of household and personal care products belongs to
the light industry, thus no pollutants are involved during the
manufacturing process and adverse impact to the surrounding
environment is minimal. The Group has been investing and
implementing various energy conservation projects in recent years, as
a result of which overall power consumption has drastically reduced.
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Business Compliance

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group adopts an employee-oriented approach, which ensures
that all staff members are reasonably remunerated. To retain a quality
workforce, we strive to regularly improve, review and update our
human resources policy and our compensation and benefits. We also
provide training opportunities to upgrade the skills of our staff
members. We also care for the occupational health and safety of our
workers.

The Group’s major customers are categorised into three channels,
namely conventional distributors, key account hypermarkets and
supermarkets, and online sales (including online official flagship stores
and distributors). The credit terms granted to major customers are 30
to 90 days, which are in line with those of the credit terms granted to
other customers.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. We have
put in place handling procedures to receive and analyse the
customers’ complaints and make recommendations on remedial
actions with a view to improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

Financial Review

Revenue

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue was approximately
RMB276.0 million, representing an increase of approximately 6.9%
from approximately RMB258.2 million for 2019. The revenue through
the online sales channel remained relatively stable as compared with
2019 and the revenue through the conventional sales channel
increased by approximately 16.3% as compared with 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated approximately
RMB261.0 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
94.6% of the Group’s total revenue by product category in 2020, and
represented an increase of approximately 8.1% as compared with
2019.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series, Royal
Wind, generated approximately RMB4.9 million in revenue, which
accounted for approximately 1.8% of the Group’s total revenue by
product category in 2020, and represented a decrease of approximately
30.0% as compared with 2019.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated approximately RMB7.6
million in revenue, which accounted for approximately 2.8% of the
Group’s total revenue by product category in 2020, and represented
an increase of approximately 1.3% as compared with 2019.

The branded Chinese herbal skin-care series, Herborn, generated
approximately RMB2.0 million in revenue, which accounted for
approximately 0.7% of the Group’s total revenue by product category
in 2020, and represented an increase of approximately 11.1% as
compared with 2019.

We sold our products through extensive distribution and retail
networks, and via conventional and online sales channels. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, a summary of our sales revenue in
percentage through different networks and/or channels is as follows:
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In 2020, our products were also sold in Hong Kong, Thailand and
Malaysia. The sales to these overseas markets accounted for
approximately 1.6% of our total revenue in 2020.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in 2020 amounted to approximately RMB167.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 17.3% compared with
approximately RMB143.1 million in 2019. The overall increase in cost
of sales was mainly due to an increase in production volume leading
to an increase in raw materials consumed and costs of direct labour
as explained below, which was driven by higher demand for our
products. As a percentage of revenue, cost of sales increased from
approximately 55.4% in 2019 to approximately 60.8% in 2020.

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit decreased to
approximately RMB108.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 6.0% as compared with approximately RMB115.0
million for 2019. The gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 44.6% for 2019 to approximately 39.2% for 2020.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to (i) an increase in the cost of
sales as aforementioned; and (i) a change in the Group’s marketing
and sales policy, whereby lower unit prices of products offered to our
distributors in exchange for a lower rate of reimbursable marketing
expenses, which had the effect of increasing the sales volume of the
Group’s products. Such policy negatively affected the Group’s gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2020, but this effect
was partially offset by a reduction in selling and distribution costs.

Other Income

During the year under review, other income increased to RMB3.7
million, representing an increase of 23.3% as compared with 2019.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately RMB84.5
million for 2020, representing a decrease of approximately 19.3% as
compared to that for 2019. Such decrease was mainly due to (i) the
change in the Group’s marketing and sales policy as aforementioned
which resulted a reduction in promotion, advertising and branding
expenses; and (i) a decrease in outsourced labour costs, but these
decreases were partially offset by an increase in salaries and bonuses
and goods delivery expenses. As a percentage of revenue, our selling
and distribution costs decreased from approximately 40.5% in 2019
t0 30.6% in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB27.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 10.8% as
compared with approximately RMB30.6 million in 2019. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in research and
development expenses and entertainment expenses, as well as the
decrease in the amount of social insurance contributions due to the
government’s relief on social insurance contributions during the
coronavirus pandemic, but such decrease was partially offset by the
increase in depreciation expenses and salaries and bonuses. As a
percentage of revenue, our administration expenses were
approximately 9.9% and 11.9% in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Impairment Losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables

For the year under review, the Group has recognised impairment
losses of approximately RMB2.8 million in respect of trade
receivables, following the management’s assessment on credit risk of
our financial assets by adopting the expected credit loss (the “ECL”)
according to IFRS 9.

Loss from Operations

The Group recorded an operating loss of approximately RMB2.8
million for 2020, as compared with an operating loss of approximately
RMB12.9 million for 2019, which was mainly because of the increase
in the Group’s revenue and a notable decrease in the selling and
distribution costs because of the change in the Group’s marketing
and sales policy as mentioned above.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, interest on bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMBO0.04 million (2019: approximately
RMBO0.6 million). Additionally, interest on lease liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB1.2 million (2019: approximately RMB1.7 million).

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had no income
tax expense (2019: an over-provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax
in prior years of approximately RMB9.1 million was written back).
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Loss for the Year

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB4.0 million for 2020,
as compared with a loss of approximately RMB6.1 million for 2019.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB4.0 million for 2020, as compared with a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB6.1
million for 2019.

Events After the Reporting Period

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report.

Outlook

In late January 2021, the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) revised
China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth prediction for 2021
from 8.2% in October 2020 to 8.1%. Separately, the actual China’s
year-on-year GDP growth decreased to 2.3% in 2020 from 6.1% in
2019, which is the lowest growth rate since 1976.

According to statistics released by China’s National Bureau of
Statistics in January 2021, China’s economic performance was better
than originally expected. Analysts pointed out that China benefitted
from a great demand for health protective gears and electronic
appliances due to work-from-home arrangements globally, as well as
online learning for students at home.

The IMF went on to say that in order to secure the recovery path, it is
important for China to ensure that rebalancing towards private
consumption continues and perhaps even accelerating this trend to a
certain extent, with efforts to strengthen the social safety net.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In January 2021, the IMF projected that the global economy will grow
by 5.5% in 2021. With the start of vaccinations in some countries,
there are hopes of an eventual end to the pandemic. However, the
IMF warned that there is still a tremendous amount of uncertainty and
prospects vary greatly across countries because the health crisis is
not over until it is over globally.

The IMF further indicated that new waves of coronavirus inflections
and variants posed risks. Global activities would remain well below
pre-COVID-19 projections which were made in early 2020. Countries
should continue to support their economies until the damage from
the deep recession of the past year is recovered.

Owing to the uncertainties as mentioned in the above paragraphs
and notwithstanding the revised upward GDP target, the Directors
tend to be very cautious about the Chinese economy in 2021. Having
said that, the effective containment of the pandemic in China has
caused a rapid recovery of private consumption. Additionally, the
general public has made more efforts to maintain their personal
hygiene and health in the midst of the pandemic in 2020. Some of
the consumers have shown their confidence in and reliance on herbal
household and personal care products. Hence, the Group has been
able to obtain business opportunities, which may be carried over to
2021.

The corporate theme for 2021 is “Turning around the Fortune in Year
of the Ox”.

For Bawang-branded products, the Group intends:

(1)  to roll out new Bawang-branded amino acid product series in
Chinese-style at our direct-operating point-of-sales at Walmart
and Yonghui in order to increase sales revenue in the retailer
channel;

(2) toincrease the number of close-encounter promotional activities
in interactive and interesting styles so as to increase our brand
influence and to enhance sales revenue;

(8) to continue the appointment of Internet celebrities as brand
ambassadors on short-term basis to enhance exposure of our
brands, and to drive up the sales revenue through the bonding
between Internet celebrities and their supporters;
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(4) to leverage on the influence arising from the “College Students
Advertising Festival” (K24 F£EETED) in spring, to continue
to explore and expand the market shares in the young
generation customer segment, to deepen the recognition and
association of the post-95 and the post-0O0 generations with
anti-hair fall concept while promoting to this generation the core
philosophy of Bawang brand in anti-hair fall and hair-care, and
to cultivate receptive attitude towards the rejuvenated Bawang
brand so as to achieve the purposes of advertising and
promoting the brand;

(5) to carry out cross-industry co-operations for publicity and
promotion of Bawang-branded products through live streaming
programs;

(6) to discharge our responsibilities to the society, to continue to
participate in the community welfare events so as to enhance
our public image as a responsible corporation, which would in
turn facilitate the promotion of Bawang-branded products; and

(7) to advertise the distinctive characteristics of Bawang-branded
products through intensively implanted commercials,
consumers’ feedbacks, note of purchases, and hyperlink to
online sales webpage.

For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group plans to build up
a new brand position for the new hair-care and hair-styling product
series for young consumers. The new products series are mainly sold
through live streaming and online channels. Additionally, we plan to
increase our sales by rolling out Royal Wind oceanic technology anti-
dandruff product series.

For Litao branded product series, we plan to roll out a new series of
laundry liquids by adopting a brand new formula, and upgrading the
packaging of existing products. This branded product series is mainly
for sales through our traditional channel and the exclusive zone
channel.

For Herborn product series, we plan to streamline the product
offerings. Apart from skin-care products, we intend to roll out hair-
care products. All these products are mainly sold through off-line
supermarkets and the online channel.
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For conventional channels, the Group will continue to deepen
cooperation and interaction with distributors by: (1) reactivating past
distributors and developing new distributors at the same time,
endeavouring to develop new conventional sales channels by
encouraging staff members to expand group sales customers,
developing more original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) customers
and obtaining customers who purchase tailor-made products from
us; (2) regularly updating our sales incentivising policies and
reinforcing our supports to key customers for the purpose of
stabilising the sales from the distributor channel; (3) upgrading the
packaging of the products for the traditional channel, increasing the
number of close-encounter promotional events for exclusive zone
channel, and rolling out other new product series so as to enhance
the sales revenue through this channel; (4) re-establishing the direct-
operating point-of-sales counters at Carrefour and Sun Art and at the
same time deploying additional sales promoters onsite for increasing
the same-store-sales; (5) making use of festive days and shop
anniversaries for carrying out promotional activities to increase sales;
and (6) increasing the efforts to recruit new distributors and organising
order conferences to enhance sales revenue.

As for the online sales channel, the Group hopes to achieve stable
sales growth in the future. For increasing sales revenues from our
own online flagship stores, the Group will optimise the operations and
create hot sales product series such as anti-hair fall and hair-care
product series for steady sales growth. The Group plans to
horizontally develop the market for gaining market share through
building up a second series of hot sales items such as hair masks,
scalp essence and shower gel so as to create greater sales volume.
We will attempt to promote our products through new promotional
channels such as Dou Yin streaming, video clips and messages
streaming so as to solicit purchases from consumers to increase our
sales volume. The Group will provide tailor-made products to the key
online distributors for enhancing sales revenue. We will also maintain
and optimise the operations of our direct-operating channel as well
as “Little Red Book” channel to increase our sales. We also plan to
develop new sales channel through Pindoudou and VIP Shop.

Apart from this, the Group plans to develop live streaming resources
through some social media platforms such as WeChat mini-program,
Bawang public domain and private zone to enhance sales revenue. In
addition to maintaining the existing customer resources, the Group
will leverage the active user-group networks and user-to-user
connections in other platforms to increase our sales revenue.
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For production management, we will endeavour to lower the labour
and production costs through cost-control measures and at the
same time, to ensure production safety and to uphold the quality of
our products. We will make efficient use of production resources by
reducing materials spoilage and scraps as well as consumptions of
water and electricity. We will enhance the workers’ sense of
responsibility through training and development on the concepts of
equipment maintenance and management to ensure well-functioning
production facilites and maximum efficiency of the manufacturing
process. We will adopt flexible supply chain management to plan and
design the manufacturing process so as to maximise production
efficiency and equipment and factory space utilisation. As the
demand for our OEM business remains strong, we will continue to
make good use of our production management skills and advanced
production facilities to satisfy the demands from our OEM customers
S0 as to create additional revenue for the Company.

As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility of engaging with potential distributors for
launching our branded products to other countries. The Group is
open to explore further business opportunities with potential overseas
distributors.

As of the date of this report, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity on hand, nor is actively exploring
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.
However, the Group is open to potential investment opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies and
maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary of liquidity
and financial resources is set out below:

B2 B 51w b 53 il (48)

nBEL MBERREARR

7N B BR P AR < O 3R B SR WS 0 M RF R 4F
RENFHMRN - RBE MY K ER
MBI

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

—E-SHE —ET—-NF

+t=A=t-H TZ-A=1+—-H

RMB in million RMB in million

ARBBET ARBBETT

Cash and cash equivalents BeMBeEED 122.3 102.2

Total loans B4 0 9.7

Total assets BEE 264.6 290.2

The gearing ratio’ EEHEX 0% 3.3%

Note: =

1. Calculate as total loans divided by total assets 1. EEBBRRENBERINEEMAREIE

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal of
any of its subsidiaries or associates during the year under review.

Exposure To Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Hedging

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in Mainland China,
with most transactions being settled in Renminbi. The reporting
currency of the Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the
Group had exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas
countries. The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars
or United States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are
mostly denominated in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in
Hong Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. In addition, the Group
paid certain advertising fees in United States Dollars or Hong Kong
Dollars. The Directors are of the view that the Group conducts its
business transactions principally in Renminbi and thus the exchange
risk at the Group’s operational level is not significant. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had not issued any material financial
instruments or entered into any material contracts for foreign currency
hedging purposes. However, the Directors will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange exposure and are prepared to take prudent
measures such as hedging when required.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB0.3 million.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, buildings with carrying values of
approximately RMB3.2 million (2020: Nil) were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. During the year under review,
the Group obtained the banking facilities of approximately RMB500
million. As at 31 December 2020, banking facilities of approximately
RMB500 million were unutilised and available for the Group’s future
financing.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands,
the Company had no reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had inventories of approximately
RMB27.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 7.1%
compared with approximately RMB29.4 milion for 2019. Such
decrease was primarily due to a change in the Group’s marketing
and sales policy whereby additional freebies were offered to our
distributors leading to a decrease in the stock of finished goods and
packaging materials, but such decrease was partially offset by the
increase in the stock of raw materials and work-in-progress.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in valuing its inventory. The
Group continuously monitors the inventory levels of its different raw
materials, packaging materials and finished goods, and based on
feedback from the sales force on the various product lines and sales
figures, the management regularly identifies the inventory levels of
individual inventory items to determine whether there is any slow
moving or obsolete items or finished goods. On this basis, the
management will devise actions to be taken in relation to such
inventory prior to their obsolescence, and/or whether provision
should be made.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB22.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 2.8% compared with approximately RMB21.5 million
for 2019. Such increase was primarily due to the increase in the
overall sales through online and conventional channels leading to an
increase in trade receivables.

Some of the Group’s sales are made on credit, trade receivables are
resulted when the goods and titles have been delivered and passed,
respectively. The management regularly reviews the credit quality of
the Group’s customers and their partners to evaluate whether
provision should be made.

Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2020, the trade and other payables of the Group
was approximately RMB81.1 million (2019: approximately RMB75.7
million). The increase was primarily due to the increase in trade
payables, accrued payroll and other payables and accruals, but such
increase was partially offset by the decrease in non-income tax
payables. For the two years ended 31 December 2020, trade and
other payables did not include any balances due to related parties.

Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees. The Group will continue to invest in our human capital so
as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational goal.

In 2020, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and we
required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest legislative/regulatory compliance,
accounting standards, taxation practices and budgetary control.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed approximately 477
employees (31 December 2019: approximately 594), consisting of
full-time employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The total personnel expenses, comprising wages, salaries and
benefits, amounted to approximately RMB55.9 million for 2020 (31
December 2019: approximately RMB54.7 million).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount of
our employees and contract personnel as at 31 December 2020 and
2019:

RZZE_EF+_A=+—H0 ' A&EH
EBREAN4T7T2RE(ZE—NF+=A
=+ —H:#594%)  HPBFEEFEM
EAENEHBEEURANEE  AS 4
AXBEREIE FaMEH - EAZE_%E
FEHNBARESBIBEBT(ZE—NAF+
“A=t+—H: HAREEMTEER) °

TREINR-_FT-_FTF+_A=+—H

A—_Z-AF+_A=t—BRMNA
BERGXNEBMNBEA :

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—E-BE —E—NF
+t=A=+-RA +=-A=+—H
Full-time employees 2BES 200 197
Contract personnel BHEER
— Sales persons —fEiH B 0 95
— Others —Efb 277 302
Total employees HEB AR 477 594
The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are AEEMEEHN ZARIE =R
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances, S A TIEET  TIEXRIR BFHELBHL
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices. TEEERBTH o
Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong join social insurance AEBRFBELZEENEE D B2

contribution plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme,
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under the
share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies play
a crucial part in the further development of the Group. Promising
career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits as well as
pleasant working environment are essential factors for maintenance
of a stable workforce for the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Code and the
Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate governance
of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates all such necessary
measures in order to promote good corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised six members,
including the Chairman, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. CHEN Zheng He (the “CEQ”), the Chief Financial Officer
and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the section headed Directors and
Senior Management on pages 59 to 64 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the Group’s
strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising the
work of management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the CEQO.
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The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management of
the Group. The Board reviews these arrangements periodically to
ensure such arrangements remain appropriate to the Group’s needs.

To satisfy the independence requirement of the independent non-
executive Directors, the Board must determine that the independent
non-executive Directors do not have any direct or indirect material
relationship with the Group. The Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules to determine the independence of Directors.
Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3
years.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Directors are not otherwise related to each other.

The Board held nine meetings in 2020. Each of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan,
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi attended all meetings.

The Company has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) and the board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) as
required by the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules,
respectively, and has taken into account the diversity of the Board
when selecting the candidates from a number of perspectives as
stated in the Diversity Policy as published on the Company’s
webpage.

Nomination Policy

Either the secretary or the chairman of the Nomination Committee
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and may invite
nominations of candidates from the Board members, if any, for the
Nomination Committee to consider prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidate(s) who are not
nominated by any member of the Board. For filling a casual vacancy,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendation(s) for the
consideration and approval of the Board. For proposing candidate(s)
to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation to the shareholders of the Company for approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

In order to provide information on the candidate(s) nominated by the
Board for election at a shareholders’ general meeting, and to invite
nominations from the shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules. The relevant circular will at a minimum set out such information
about each proposed candidate, as required under the applicable
laws, rules and regulations, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Listing Rules. A shareholder may serve a notice to the
Company Secretary within the lodgment period of its intention to
propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a director without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination. The particulars of the proposed candidates will be sent
to all shareholders for information by a supplementary circular.

In assessing the suitability of a potential candidate, the Nomination
Committee would consider factors, including but not limited to,
candidate’s personal integrity and character, accomplishment and
experience that are relevant to the Group’s business, and diversity of
the Board in accordance with the Diversity Policy.

Diversity Policy

In achieving diversity of the Board, a number of aspects of each
director candidate will be considered, including but not limited to
gender, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointment will be based on meritocracy, and the candidates will be
considered based on the objective criteria as set out in this policy
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and has followed the Nomination Policy and the
Diversity Policy in the nomination of the new Director(s).

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which, the decision to declare a dividend or a distribution
will be at the discretion of the Board. The Company intends to
declare dividends to shareholders semi-annually in an aggregate
amount per year not exceeding 30% of the anticipated consolidated
net annual profits and may declare special dividends from time to
time in addition to interim or final dividends. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account (including but not limited to) the
Group’s operations and earnings, development needs, cash flow,
financial condition, capital and other reserve requirements and
surplus, contractual and financial restrictions and any other conditions
or factors which the Board considers relevant and having regard to
the directors’ fiduciary duties. While sharing the profit with
shareholders, the Company shall also maintain sufficient reserves to
ensure the implementation of the Group’s strategy for development.
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The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong,
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
those laws, regulations and memorandum and articles of association
to which the subsidiaries of the Group are subject.

The Divided Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and
there can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

Update on Directors’ Information

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, an independent non-executive Director, has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of China
Energy Engineering Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 3996.HK) since
February 2021. Dr. NGAI ceased to be an independent non-executive
director of the following companies: Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable
Joint Stock Limited Company (stock code: 6869.HK) from January
2020, Health and Happiness (H&H) International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1112.HK) from May 2020, and SITC International Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1308.HK) from October 2020. Also,
he ceased to be the independent director of LDK Solar Co., Limited
from April 2020.

Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the Chief Executive
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than the Directors and the
Chief Executive, there is no other member of senior management.

Directors’ Training

Under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors are arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics are issued to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

As of 31 December 2020, all Directors (being Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi) received regular updates on
the Group’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters, and participated in the directors’ training offered
by professional bodies and/or arranged by the Company. Materials
on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group were provided to the Directors. Directors are requested to
provide their records of training they received to the Company
Secretary for record and annual review by Nomination Committee.
During the year under review, the Directors received an aggregate of
approximately 246.5 hours of training in various fields with a
breakdown as follows:

2020 Directors’ Training by Topic
—E_EFEEEIEE
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Wing is the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of our Group, review
performance based remuneration and ensures that none of our
Directors determine their own remuneration. If necessary, the
Remuneration Committee will have access to independent advice.

The Remuneration Committee held two meeting in 2020. Each of Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung
attended the said meeting.

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the
remuneration structure of the Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the re-
election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held two meeting in 2020. During the
meeting, the committee members reviewed the senior management
structure of the Group and the re-election of Directors. All committee
members attended the said meeting.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
two of whom possess the appropriate business and financial
experience and skills to understand the accounts of the Group. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee is chaired by Dr. NGAI Wai
Fung and the other members are Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
WANG Q.
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The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee was prepared
and adopted in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, to review accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, to engage independent legal or other advisers as it determines
necessary and to perform investigations.

During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope and
findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the
external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’'s independence, objectivity and
the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and interim
results announcements of the Company;

— reviewed the effectiveness and the implementation of the
Group’s internal audit and risk management function;

— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
report with the management and the external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.
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In 2020, all issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit and
Risk Management Committee have been addressed by the senior
management of the Company. The work and findings of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee have been reported to the Board.
During the audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2019, one
issue relating to the use of treasury funds by the management of the
Company had been noted by the external auditor and reported to the
Audit and Risk Management Committee, which was subsequently
reported to the Board, and addressed by way of an announcement
dated 5 April 2020 by the Company and also enhanced by adopting
internal control policies to prevent future occurrence. Save for the
foregoing, during the year, no issues were brought to the attention of
the senior management of the Company and the Board of sufficient
significance for disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held three meetings in
2020. Each of Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
WANG Qi had attended all three meetings.

Reference is also made to the Company’s announcement dated 5
April 2020 in relation to the subscription of wealth management
products. The Audit and Risk Management Committee would also
like to report that the Group has updated its internal control manual
on cash and treasury management on 1 April 2020. In 2020, the
Group has provided a training session to the management and
members of its finance department on topics relating to Listing Rules
compliance, and the Group had also reminded its management and
members of its finance department to report transactions which may
constitute potential discloseable transactions. In 2020, the Group has
consulted with the Group’s external legal advisors regularly on
matters relating to regulatory compliance (including without limitation
those relating to connected transactions and discloseable
transactions).

The Audit and Risk Management Committee reports that the
individual ratification and remedial measures, which were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 5 April 2020 for investments
into wealth management products, have been implemented by the
Group during the year under review to ensure that the requirements
under Chapter 14 the Listing Rules are fully complied with.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
performing the functions set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code.

During the year under review, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee met three times to review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and the compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020, is set out on pages 70 to 72 of the annual
report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and procedures and to resolve material internal
control defects. The Board together with the senior management of
the Group are jointly responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with the
applicable laws and regulations.

EREIBHS ()

ERMEREEZESRERET(EEE
ya <t A ST AIME ST 5E D.3.1 16 BT & A Bk BE -

REBEFERN EZhAREEZES
BRI=-ZXNGH BRARFANEEER
BBRRMER ESFRSREEBMIE
IRFERERR ARBEETER
REBRTE T HEBREERNET(D
XERATADNBERARRALEERR
TANKE -

ETHMERENRE

EENTZRAARMRARATHHRE
BRVBRREREANEZEERLS
FHERIRE

AARIZEMREHAEEHE T =
EFEF+_A=Z+-—"BULEFESEVBER
FWBREETABOBBPHEN AT E R
EETIORT2E °

VEETERIBRZEXNTHARE
ARRHSARFAFELLENENELEERXR
e

BB 2 R B E

EXg A tiRRERERABEZERS
LEREFREEADEARELEENR
B ITEBETHNERLEREERZE
SEMBMAZEHEZE A BRI LR
BEAMERRX - EZSHEBNG
REEBHAER —EBRAKRERN 13
RzEMABAEMMAIEZEFERZ X
RIE)EE - Mz REERANEE SN
WIASMELE FUNEREEXER K
BASBEEE REATENTFEHEN
KB TiEREER R -

37



38

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2020

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEEIBHRS (8)

During the year under review, the management of the Group, through
its daily management activities, gathers information on the Group’s
business, receives reports from the internal control function of the
Group, and analyses feedback from frontline and back office staff to
identify risks in the Group’s business, operation, financial conditions
and future expansion plans. Significant risks that are identified are
presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board on an ongoing basis.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing reports and proposals submitted. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee will consider such risks and
recommend to the Board measures that should to be taken to
address them. Where appropriate, management of the Group will
assist the Audit and Risk Management Committee in submitting
proposals to the Board to address risks faced by the Group.

Based on the risks identified by the Group’s management and the
Group’s internal control function, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee will also regularly review and report to the Board as to
whether the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective, whether there are adequate resources (including
budgetary support for the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, staff with adequate qualification and
experience) for the implementation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and whether measures are in place to
ensure that the staff are suitably trained for this purpose. The
Directors will then collectively decide on what actions should be
taken.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group covering all material controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls, and save as mentioned above, the Board
considers that these systems and controls are well established to suit
the Group’s needs and are effective and adequate.

The Directors recognise that the Group’s risk management and
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Handling and disclosure of inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information (as defined under the Listing
Rules), the Company is fully aware of its obligations under Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Board reviews from time to time its internal guidelines on inside
information with reference to its own and industry circumstances and
also makes reference the “Guide on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in considering its
obligations to make a disclosure. The Company’s policy strictly
prohibits unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information and has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, including
the provision of an email address for external enquiries. The Company
Secretary also regularly sends out reminders to the directors, senior
management and employees reminding them of their obligations with
respect to inside information under the relevant statutory provisions
and Listing Rules.

All media communication activities are restricted to persons
appointed by the Board for the role in order to protect the interests of
the Company and keep inside information strictly confidential prior to
its disclosure.
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Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of corporate
communication documents to shareholders; (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (i) latest and key information of the
Group is available on the website of the Company; (iv) press
conference and briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and
analysts may be set up from time to time to provide updated
information about the Group, and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve
the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. The
Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with
the Board or the management directly. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the Chairmen and/or other members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee will
normally attend the annual general meetings and other shareholders’
meetings of the Company to answer questions raised.

The Company convened one shareholders’ general meeting in 2020,
being the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) for the year 2019. The
AGM held on 29 May 2020 reviewed and approved a number of
resolutions such as the financial statements for the year 2019, Report
of Directors and appointment and remuneration of auditors of the
Company. All the Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi have attended the AGM of the
Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial Officer. He
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the policy and procedures of the Board are followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
by sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.

Contact details are as follows:
Address: Suite B, 16/F Ritz Plaza,

122 Austin Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,
Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 3114 8819
Email: IR@1338.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders
may refer to the Articles for further details of their rights.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remunerations paid/(payable) to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended
31 December 2020 in relation to audit services and non-audit
services (including the review of the Company’s interim results
announcement and interim report for the year 2020, respectively)
were approximately RMB903,000 and RMB160,000 respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EFEZRE

The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing, manufacturing,
trading and distribution of Chinese herbal products, including
shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-care products, and
household cleaning products. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 162 to 163 of this
annual report.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the financial year 2020, as well as indication of likely
future developments in the business of the Group are set out in the
sections “Business Review” on pages 9 to 13, “Key Risks and
Uncertainties” on pages 14 to 15, “Environmental Protection” on
page 15, “Business Compliance” on page 16, “Relationship with
Employees, Customers and Suppliers” on page 16, and “Outlook” on
pages 20 to 24 of this report respectively. An analysis using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the sections “Revenue and
Segment Information” on pages 121 to 124 and “Five Year Financial
Summary” on page 164 in this report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the Board
does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 73 of
this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the financial year 2020 are set out on pages 76 and
154 of this annual report respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales made to the
Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 23.1% and 11.0%, respectively of the total sales of
the Group. The Group purchased approximately 38.85% and 16.0%,
respectively of its goods and services purchased from its five largest
suppliers and the largest supplier.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 164 of this annual
report.

Bank Borrowing

Please refer to note 26 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of bank borrowing of the Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 28 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in Equity

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity as
contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the year
(page 76 of this annual report).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Principal Subsidiaries

Please refer to note 36 of the audited consolidated financial

statements for details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2020.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the Share Option Scheme described below, the Group has
not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available

to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the
public as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of assets of our Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur about the execution of
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year. For the year under review and as at the date of this
report, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against the directors of the Company.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
CHEN Zheng He (Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Sin Yung cra

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung php, cPA, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (P.E.), MCIArb
CHEUNG Kin Wing rca, cra
Dr. WANG Qi
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Directors’ Biographies and re-election of Directors

Details of the Directors’ (for the year ended 31 December 2020)
biographies have been set out on pages 59 to 64 of the annual
report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. CHEN Zheng He) has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHEN Zheng He has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 20 October 2014. All these service
agreements are automatically renewable upon expiration, unless
terminated by not less than six months’ written notice served by
either party to the service agreement on the other or in accordance
with the provisions set out in the relevant service agreement.

For the independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Ngai Wai Fung has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years from 4 July 2018. Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years from 13 November 2020. Dr. WANG Qi has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years from 17
April 2018.

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into any service
contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments for the Directors are determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, experience, responsibilities
and performance of the Group. The Directors may be benefited from
fees, salaries, housing allowances, other allowances, benefits in kind
or bonuses in accordance with their respective service contracts.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As of 31 December 2020, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into the register that was required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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EEZHRE (E)

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short

EEREETHRAARFTLFRMG

positions in shares, underlying shares and HBERBROREEEZEDEEFHIESR R
debentures of the Company =}
Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares of the Company
Company held RAFE
Name of director/ BEAT 21T
chief executive Long/short position in HEBERX [N
EE/BESTHRAER ordinary shares Nature of interest HEZEER ERBDLE
=z BEBRBPZEF/IXR EEME I 1n BB (W8
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
PR RUIR (Bt 5E1) HE PIT 22 % B 7 &
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2)  Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
PR IE#5 (Bt 2) e T DA B #E 2
WONG Sin Yung Long Beneficial owner 2,100,000 0.07%
BER o) EnEAA
Notes: B &t
1. CHEN Qiyuan was deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the 1, B & [ BRUJR 45 /5 Fortune Station 2 50.43% 2 & %
Company held by Fortune Station Ltd. (‘Fortune Station”) by virtue of CHEN Qiyuan TR 0 BR BUOR ¥ 48 & % A Fortune Station Ltd.
holding 50.43% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station. The remaining 49.57% [Fortune Station | fi7 #5 /5 #91,900,840,000 f& A &)
of the issued share capital of Fortune Station was held by Heroic Hour Limited (“Heroic f% 15 H) #E & ° Fortune Station # B #:49.57% B %
Hour"). Heroic Hour’s entire issued share capital is held by CHEN Zheng He as trustee 77 B 7~ f Heroic Hour Limited ([ Heroic Hour |) 5
for himself and on behalf of his six brothers and sisters. The beneficial interests of B MREBEASTARBRENUPKESR
CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under the age of 18, namely CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Heroic Hour ) 2 Ef B 2 17 & 7N - f R RUR 18/ 5%
Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in LA TR B /i F %2+ BNPR 4% ¥F - CHEN Li Zi * CHEN
Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour, were Zheng Sheng * & IE & + B& Tt & K& Chen Bo Ling fiT
also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan. H 25 ¥ A #978.00% Heroic Hour 2 % 17 J% 78 IR 4R
R B REUR
2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the shares of Fortune Station held by 2. BHEBEBEASTARBRERNMUBEEAR

Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters). Therefore CHEN Zheng He was
deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the Company held by Fortune
Station.

Heroic Hour ) 2 &0 2 % 17 A& 78 1 # 18 /& 5 Heroic
Hour 7£ Fortune Station#) # == # # & # = ©
Itk BR IE #5 #% 12 /& # % Fortune Station T 35 & &9
1,900,840,000 % & ] A& 17 #9 # &% ©
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of associated corporations

EFEHRE (F)

ESREETHRA BB ERMNK
fo-HHRKMRREEBEPZE R %
=

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary interest in
Name of director/ Name of shares held associated
chief executive associated Long/short BEMH corporation
EZ/BRTHAR corporation Nature of interest position ZER REBEZESD
=L HEEE AR ERME HI%E ROEBE EZBEIL
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Fortune Station Beneficial owner Long 20,000 50.43%
BRRUR (M 5E1) EnfAA i E
Interest of children under Long 15,330 38.66%
the age of 18
AMI1BRE TR 2 # o Sy
Other Long 4,327 10.91%
HAth e
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2)  Fortune Station Interest in controlled corporation  Long 19,657 49.57%
PR IE#5 (Fif5E2) P #2251 A B #E 2 e
Notes: B 3 -
1. CHEN Qiyuan was the beneficial owner of approximately 50.43% of the issued share 1. P& BLR A& Fortune Station 2 %2 17 1% 2K 89 #950.43% &

capital of Fortune Station. The beneficial interests of CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under
the age of 18 in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share capital of
Heroic Hour, were also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan. Heroic Hour held approximately
49.57% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station.

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the interests of Fortune Station held
by Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, neither the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into in the register that was required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

mHAAN - AREURISEARA T AN TFLME
5 5 A #978.00% Heroic Hour 2, 8 17 f% 28 IR 4848 &
57 B 1A BREXR © Heroic Hour#¥ 7 Fortune Station & 2%
TR A 8 #749.57% ©

2. BREREBEAITARBREANUBH®KER
Heroic Hour 2 & &B 2 % 17 i% 7~ 1 4% 4% /& 5 Heroic
Hour 7 Fortune Station 89 # 2 7 # /5 # 4 ©
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EFBHRS (88)

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As of 31 December 2020, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

RPNBRFERRERHOEZR
NP
IR 2

BARABEMESEHESTRABM
MR —_E_TE+_A=1t—H KX
(RARREZTHRSITHRABIN) RK
MRBERD T EAERIERE S X E &
PIE336HFMEAELCNFFENE LM
AEVERSORB T

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares issued share

ofthe Company capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest held Company
RAFBE
BENLQR BITRAEAHZ
ZER X =
IRER & B EEMtE g = (W8
Fortune Station Beneficial owner 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%
ExnEAA
Heroic Hour Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 942,199,659 (L) 29.80%
Pz sl E B s (P EE1)
WAN Yuhua (Note 2) Interest of children under the age of 18 734,797,818 (L) 23.25%
B EE(MF2) RM18BRH F 2 2 2
CHEN Cynthia Yuping (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR SE 5 (Kt 5 3) X am A GERBER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
Hh
CHEN Li Zi (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Li Zi (P 7£3) X m A GERBERE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
HAb
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Fif 7£3) 55t X & A GERB(EE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%

Hit



FIER(EE)EZEREBRAT —Z-2FFRH

Report of the Directors (Continued)

EFEHRE (F)

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares issued share
of the Company capital of the

Name of shareholder Nature of interest held Company
RAFBE
BENLQR BITREAHZ
ZRER EmEO
REREB EEME g - 4= (W&
CHEN Zheng Yan (Note 3)  Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR IE 52 (Pt 5 3) ErtX@m A GERMERE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H oy
CHEN Ya Shan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR M= (B 3) ErtX@m A GEREER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
Hith
CHEN Bo Ling (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Bo Ling (Hf 3£ 3) ErEXm A GERIBER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
HAh
(L)—Long Position
L—EFE
Notes: Bt 3 -
1. Heroic Hour was the beneficial owner of approximately 49.57% of the issued share 1. 78 # Heroic Hour /& Fortune Station 2 3 17 i 748 #9 49

capital of Fortune Station and was deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station.

2. The beneficial interests of WAN Yuhua’s six children under the age of 18, namely
CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya
Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share
capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable to WAN Yuhua.

3. The interests of CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng
Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling were held as beneficiaries under a trust,
which held 100% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour.

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2020, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

49.57% B % B A » Heroic Hour # 1% 7 7 Fortune
StatonHF A AR RN PEEER

2. B8 EEISEARNU TN T BN F -
CHEN Li Zi * CHEN Zheng Sheng ' FRIF 7 @ BR =
K CHEN Bo Ling T & % 5§ /& #178.00% Heroic Hour
ERITRATHEARERERE -

3. JRFEPREELF ~ CHEN Li Zi ~ CHEN Zheng Sheng ~ R
F#  BR#EZMCHENBoLingBR — {5/t T
= A v I 1E 7 #5 B Heroic Hour 2 0 B B 1TRE AN -

R—_E-_ZEF+-_A=Z+—H B EX
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Share Option Scheme

The Company currently has in place a share option scheme, the
purpose of which is to give the Directors, senior management and
employees of the Group an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company and help motivate its employees to optimise their
performance and efficiency, and also to retain employees whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability
of the Group.

The current scheme was adopted on 29 May 2020 (the “2020 Share
Option Scheme”), which replaced the previous share option scheme
that expired on 19 May 2019. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2020 Share Option Scheme would remain in force for
10 years from the date of it becoming unconditional. All conditions for
the adoption of the 2020 Share Option Scheme have been fulfilled on
2 June 2020.

The eligible participants of the 2020 Share Option Scheme may
include, among others, directors, employees, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture
partners, advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in
which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% (or such other
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme shall be 316,244,072
shares, representing 10.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.
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Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates) of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon payment
of an option price to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an
option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the
2020 Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share.

An offer of a grant of share options shall be deemed to have been
accepted and a share option to which the offer relates shall be
deemed to have been granted and accepted and to have taken effect
when the Company, within 21 days from the date on which a share
option is offered to an eligible participant, receives the duly signed
offer letter from the grantee together with the number of shares in
respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein and a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 (or such other sum in any
currency as the Board may determine) in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant of share option thereof.

Since the effective date of the 2020 Share Option Scheme and up to
31 December 2020, no share option was outstanding under the 2020
Share Option Scheme, and there was no share option granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2020 Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had the following
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. Lease Agreement for the Group’s production facilities,
office premises and staff dormitory
On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into a lease agreement (the “Old Lease
Agreement”) for the Group’s production facilities, office
premises and staff dormitory, which is located at 468 Guanghua
3rd Road, Bawang Industrial Complex, Baiyun District,
Guangzhou, the PRC. The Old Lease Agreement was for a
lease term of three years commencing on 1 December 2017,
and the monthly rent (exclusive of management fee and other
outgoings, which are payable to an independent third party
management company) in aggregate is RMB719,858. Details of
the Old Lease Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 December 2017.

On 17 November 2020, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into a lease agreement (the “New Lease
Agreement”) for the Group’s production facilities, office
premises and staff dormitory in the same premises with a
reduced area for a fixed term of one year commencing from 1
December 2020. The monthly rent (exclusive of management
fee and other outgoings, which are payable to an independent
third party management company) in aggregate is
RMB1,040,013 under the New Lease Agreement. Pursuant to
IFRS16 (Leases), the leased premises under the New Lease
Agreement were recognised by the Group as a right-of-use
asset with a book value of approximately RMB12,191,000 as at
1 December 2020, and the transaction contemplated under the
New Lease Agreement was regarded as an acquisition of a
right-of-use asset by the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.
Details of the New Lease Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 17 November 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the lease payment paid
by Bawang Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang pursuant to the
Old Lease Agreement and New Lease Agreement was
approximately RMB7.2 million and RMB1.0 million, respectively.
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As of 31 December 2017, Guangzhou Bawang was beneficially
owned as to 20% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the CEO and an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters. The transactions
contemplated under the Old Lease Agreement therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company; and the transactions contemplated under the New
Lease Agreement constituted connected transactions for the
Company.

Packaging Material Supply Agreement

The Company and Chenming Paper entered into a packaging
material supply agreement on 1 June 2018, pursuant to which
Chenming Paper agreed to supply packaging material to
Bawang Guangzhou from time to time at prices that are
reviewed regularly based on arm’s length negotiations between
the Group and Chenming Paper for a term of three years
commencing from 1 June 2018 (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”). In determining the prevailing market
rates, and to ensure that the terms of purchase of packaging
materials under the Packaging Material Supply Master
Agreement are no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties, the Company will obtain quotations
from two or more suppliers that are independent from the
Group on a regular basis (but no less frequently than once every
three months to determine the prevalent market prices and
terms of the supply of packaging materials in similar quantities.
For details of the terms of the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 1 June 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not
purchase any packaging material from Chenming Paper.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. Chenming Paper is wholly
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s
brother. The transactions contemplated under the Packaging
Material Supply Agreement therefore constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company.
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The internal control and risk management functions of the Group
together with the senior management of the Group had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year under
review, the scope of review included whether the premises lease
agreements were implemented in accordance with their terms,
whether the packaging materials purchased from the Company’s
connected person were purchased in accordance with the provisions
and the pricing as stipulated in the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, and whether the transaction amount of each continuing
connected transaction had exceeded its respective annual cap.
During the year under review, the Company did not purchase any
packaging material from Chenming Paper as mentioned above. The
continuing connected transactions in relation to the transactions
contemplated under the Old Lease Agreement did not exceed the
annual caps for the year under review. The results of the review had
been provided to the Board.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions. The Company also confirms that during the
year under review it has followed the policies and guidelines as
described above in determining the pricing and the terms of the
continuing connected transactions. The Company further confirms
that the related party transactions that are set out in Note 33 under
the section headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements”
in this annual report fall within the definition of connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and these transactions
complied with the relevant connected transaction requirements
thereunder.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and the respective
annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole and the transaction amounts of such
continuing connected transactions did not exceed their respective
annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interests in
contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions” in this annual report, no
Director or Controlling Shareholder, or an entity connected with a
Director or a Controlling Shareholder has or had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
which was subsisting during or at the end of the 2020 financial year.
Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interest in
competing business

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had
any interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

Retirement schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. There was no
forfeited contribution available to reduce the contribution payable by
the Group under the above schemes.
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Corporate governance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2020, all the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the
Company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 with the
management of the Company and the Company’s independent
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.

Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors

During the year under review, the Board consisted of six Directors,
including three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain information
in respect of our Directors:

EEREEBERAS

=

REBEEFERN EFEem A 2EFHA
K BRZZ2UTEER=ZR2BILIFH
TEE - TREIBREFENETER:

Name Age Position/Title

#"E Fir BB oL / B8 #5

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 59 Chairman and Executive Director

PR BUR 5% & TERBTES

Mr. CHEN Zheng He 32 CEQ and Executive Director

PR 1IE 85 %% & EFATERNTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 66 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
BEREE BEEMBERNTES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung 59 Independent non-executive Director
BREEELT BYIEMITES

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 66 Independent non-executive Director
RERFE BYERITES

Dr. WANG Qi 41 Independent non-executive Director
TEEL BIFATES

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, aged 59, is the co-founder of our Group, our
chairman and has been our executive Director since 12 November
2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in
the Chinese herbal HPC product industry, having been engaged in
the consumer chemical product business for over 20 years. Mr.
CHEN entered into the HPC product business by establishing
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the predecessor entity of
the Company) in 1994. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading of
pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Culture.
In December 2013, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan had been honoured as the
“Distinguished People of Yunfu City” for recognition of his contribution
to the development of the city. Mr. CHEN is the father of Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, an executive Director and the CEO of the Company.
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Mr. CHEN Zheng He, aged 32, was appointed as our executive
Director on 20 October 2014. Mr. CHEN joined the Group in March
2007 and has been officially appointed as a director of Bawang
Guangzhou and afterwards certain other subsidiaries of the Group
since then and started to involve in the planning of sales, marketing,
advertising and promotion campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr.
CHEN was appointed as the personal assistant to the chief executive
officer of the Company since March 2012, mainly responsible for the
daily administration and management of Bawang Guangzhou. Since
mid-2013, Mr. CHEN has also been responsible for the supervision
and execution of sales, marketing, advertising and promotion
campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN works closely with the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company on
formulating overall strategic plan and management of the Group, and
executing strategic plans in marketing, and sales and distribution. Mr.
CHEN has been appointed as the CEO and Remuneration Committee
Member with effect from 9 December 2015. Mr. CHEN obtained the
degree of bachelor of commerce from the University of Toronto in
2012. Mr. CHEN is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman and
an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. WONG Sin Yung, aged 66, is our Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in April 2008 and
was appointed as our executive Director on 10 December 2008. Mr.
WONG was also appointed as our Chief Financial Officer and our
Company Secretary since December 2008. He is responsible for the
finance management and control, accounting, auditing, company
secretarial and investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (03398), from 2005 to 2008, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was the chief
accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong & Associates (Industrial
Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992 and from 1994 to 2003
respectively. He also worked for a certified public accountant firm
from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG has over 30 years experience in
corporate finance, accounting, auditing, corporation administration,
and project consulting. He is an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a
master’s degree in human resource management from Macquarie
University in 1996 and a master’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong in 1999.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAlI Wai Fung (Fi{£1£), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2008. He is the group chief executive officer of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a specialty company
secretarial, corporate governance and compliance services provider
to companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO stages. Prior to that, he was
the director and head of listing services of an independent integrated
corporate services provider. He has over 30 years of professional
practice and senior management experience including acting as the
executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary, most
of which are in the areas of finance, accounting, internal control and
risk management, regulatory compliance, corporate governance and
secretarial work for listed issuers including major red chips
companies. Dr. NGAI had led or participated in a number of
significant corporate finance projects including listings, mergers and
acquisitions as well as issuance of debt securities. He is a member of
the General Committee and the Chairman of Membership Services of
Sub-Committees of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
and has been appointed as a Finance Expert Consultant by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC since 2016. He was the President of
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (2014-2015), an
unofficial member of the Working Group on Professional Services
under the Economic Development Commission of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (2013-2018) and a member of the Qualification
and Examinations Board of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (2013-2018). Dr. NGAI is currently the independent
non-executive director of Bosideng International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3998. HK), Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1238.HK), Beijing Capital Grand Limited (Stock Code: 1329.
HK), BBMG Corporation (Stock Code: 2009.HK), TravelSky
Technology Limited (Stock Code: 696.HK), China Communications
Construction Company Limited (Stock Code: 1800.HK) and China
Energy Engineering Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 3996.HK) and
also the independent director of SPI Energy Co., Ltd. Apart from SPI
Energy Co., Ltd., which is now listed on Nasdaq respectively, all of
which are companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and/
or the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr. NGAI was the independent
non-executive director of China Coal Energy Company Limited (Stock
Code: 1898.HK) from December 2010 to June 2017, China Railway
Group Limited (Stock Code: 390.HK) from June 2014 to June 2017,
Renco Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as HKBridge
Financial Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 2323.HK) from March 2016
to April 2018, Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
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Company (Stock Code: 6869.HK) from September 2014 to January
2020, Health and Happiness (H&H) International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1112.HK) from July 2010 to May 2020 and SITC International
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 1308.HK) from September
2010 to October 2020. Also, he was the independent director of LDK
Solar Co., Limited from July 2011 to April 2020.

Dr. NGAI is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow of the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators),
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a fellow
of Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. Dr. NGAI received a doctoral degree in
Finance from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, a
master’'s degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, a bachelor honor degree in Laws from
University of Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from Andrews University of
Michigan in the United States.

BIE R AR A ) (B 5 A5 - 2323.HK)
BYUHITESE  —_E-—NEHLAEC
T EFE-AEEARRIECEBNERNDE
IR A A (B 1D 5% - 6869.HK) I8 3 JE#h 1T
£ T ZEFLtAE-_FT-_FFH
BETREASHIHBEEIERER A 7 (%
BRI ANM2HO B L FERITESE R =
T-TFNAE T _TF+AEIHE
LR A BR A A (AR SR - 1308.
HRO B ERTES - B R T ——
FEtAEZZTZFF M A & FELDK Solar
Co., Limited ) B E £ -

S8 -AAESFMAEEE  HEBHFA
ARERENEARSR BAERBMNE
REWMEFREER = =
B BAEBEEFLRREBEGEREFFM
 ANBEEBR -RBLORKFAELEN
RREesRELEN FEEIAED
ERMEBRLEN REFEFREEIAE
KEZXREBT XBEEZFERMZEEKX
BTREERLBEMI-

&



FIER(EE)EZEREBRAT —Z-2FFRH

Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing ((RZ & 5t 4), aged 66, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr.
CHEUNG has over 30 years of experience in information technology,
financial accounting, auditing and management. Mr. CHEUNG is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Since February 1999, Mr. CHEUNG has been a director and
lead consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a company providing
human resources management and information technology
consultancy services to its clients (including government organisations
and private companies). Mr. CHEUNG had been an independent
director of Principal Trust Company (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly
known as AXA China Region Trustees Limited) from August 1999 to
August 2015 and an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited from November 2003 to January
2018. Mr. CHEUNG has been an independent non-executive director
of ENM Holdings Limited (00128) since June 2016, Trio Industrial
Electronics Group Limited (01710) since February 2017, and Kin
Pang Holdings Limited (01722) since November 2017, companies
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr CHEUNG joined Self Strengthening Service Centre
Limited (B3&iR%&EH AR AR]), which is a company limited by
guarantee and an approved charitable organization, as a director on
a voluntary basis with effect from 30 September 2019. Mr. CHEUNG
had held several positions, including Assistant Manager, Manager
and Senior Manager between September 1980 and July 1991 in
Coopers & Lybrand. Mr. CHEUNG had been a partner of Coopers &
Lybrand since March 1995, and had been a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since Coopers & Lybrand was merged with
Price Waterhouse into PricewaterhouseCoopers in October 1998
until his resignation in May 1999. Mr. CHEUNG was Director of
Operations and Finance of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants between July 2004 and April 2008 and a consultant of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants between April
2008 and August 2008. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce from The University of Calgary in Canada in June 1979.
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EFERSEBEERAS(AE)

Dr. WANG Qi (E¥fEZL), aged 41, was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company on 17 April 2018. Dr. WANG
is currently the vice director of the Dongguan Institute of Opto-
electronics, Peking University. Prior to that, from 2010 to 2012, he
was a research associate in the Department of Electronic and
Electrical Engineering of the University of Sheffield in the United
Kingdom, and also worked at Seren Photonics Ltd, a company in the
United Kingdom which focuses on the development and
manufacturing of semi-polar and non-polar Gallium Nitride templates.
From 2012 to 2014, he was a postdoctoral research fellow in the
Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering of McGill
University in Canada.

Dr. WANG is a member of the Dongguan committee of the Jiusan
Society, the chairman of the Songshan Lake branch of the Dongguan
committee of the Jiusan Society, a vice chairman of the technological
innovation promotion committee of the Dongguan Committee of the
Jiusan Society, an entrepreneurship mentor of the Dongguan
Business Incubation Association and a member of the Dongguan
Songshan Lake High-tech Industry Development Zone Science and
Technology Association. He is also the legal representative and an
executive director of the Dongguan Yanyuan Technological Assets
Management Company Limited. He was recognised as a special
professional of Dongguan City (3rd Class Distinctive Talent) by the
Office for the Administration of Talent Affairs of Dongguan City in
2017.

Dr. WANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics (magnetism) from
Lanzhou University in 2001. He studied at the Department of Physics
of Peking University from 2002 to 2008. He obtained a Doctor of
Philosophy in the Faculty of Engineering Department of Electronic
and Electrical Engineering from the University of Sheffield in the
United Kingdom in 2010.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

fkeo

Shinezot'ng

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 73 to 163, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters EEREXEIE

BERMMELHE BREXEEA
ATERARE AN BEREPREEN
FE- ATEERBERGAMBREN
RHTREREEELEEE TTE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matter
BREREER

MR FEREFERZR -

58 55 B U R 2% B B £
SRR AM B HRERME21

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB22,110,000, net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately
RMB7,050,000.

NRZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—-—HB S£EBHEWK
BR S EA A RB22110,0007T @ 5 HE E 5 A L
A R #7,050,0007T °

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based
on expected credit losses (“ECL”), which is estimated
by taking into account the credit loss experience and
forward-looking information including both current and
forecast general economic conditions.

BEPRBERBENREBEEENRBHEERX
([FRMEEEX]D EEBTEERRERMAE
MEHBERTEAMMBEANEELERRNREESE
E’\]O

We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the impairment
assessment of trade receivables involved a significant
degree of management judgement and may be subject
to management bias.

& APIHE B 5 18 U R 5K B9 088 (B 5 4 T E 3 B R | AT
FE AREBEZIRUEFRENGESIRERRE
MERHE EPAEFERSRRREROERN -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s ECL model
on impairment assessment of trade receivables.

B EFIEFEEHEEENRE S RKRFORE
AMEEMEERARAUNBRR LA R L ERE -

We have assessed the reasonableness of
management’s estimates for impairment allowance by
examining the information used by management to form
such judgements, including testing accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information.

BMBEREEEERIAMEL LA HENER - &
EARELEZNVBURMERE FEELBRXEA
BREBERE NN R ATEEERMELEE B
KAEEEEATRERGNSIENE-

We have also inspected settlements from debtors after
year end relating to trade receivables balance as at 31
December 2020 on a sample basis.

BREMERE T FRARKEHZABRB LR =
E_TFT A=t HEZRUERFHKEFHEN
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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FR{EE

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matter
HRELXER

SHEAVHHRRMEI9-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had inventories of
approximately RMB27,307,000, net of accumulated
allowance of approximately RMB1,585,000.

R-ZB-F5+-A=+—0 ExEFEE
4 A R #527,307,0007C « R BB B KA R
1,5685,0007T °

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the involvement
of significant judgement and estimation on the
assessment of the net realisable values with reference
to the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions.

HMEFEENREFGEEREREFSFE B
REMESEVBRRTNEENE  UKBER
ﬁmﬁTﬁWﬂmwmm%M#T &R
EHRFENTENEANHEMGEE

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
management’s estimations and judgements on the
assessment of net realisable value of inventories and
identification of obsolete item based on their subsequent
usage and selling prices subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and current market conditions.

BARANBAEFEEFEEEBRHEFENAE
BFER[MAG  RIZCHREREB RS ﬁ%ﬁ
METHER - URERREHRNHEEEBRNE
BB T 5 AR5 ©

We have assessed the net realisable value and utilisation
of inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting
period on a sample basis and discussed with the
management in respect of the adequacy of the
allowance made based on subsequent usage and sales,
ageing analysis and current market conditions. We have
also assessed the assumptions and critical judgements
used by the management by assessing the reliability of
the management’s past estimates.
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Impairment on property, plant and equipment and Y% BHERSBHENEHESIENR

right-of-use assets

Refer to notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matter
BREREER

8
DERZEPBEHRERPMFEI7MA8 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB78,699,000, net of accumulated
impairment losses of approximately RMB113,622,000,
and RMB10,853,000 respectively.

HE-_ZE-_ZF+_-_A=1+—"H AEEHY
X BMEAIXENMERAEBEEESINOBAR
78,609,000t FEFTHMEREXN A AR

113,622,000 7T M A K # 10,853,000 7T °

We have identified impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit
matter because of their significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the determination of the
recoverable amount of these assets required significant
management judgement relating to items such as level
of revenue and amount of operating costs and discount
rate.

ZPECEEE TR BEREXBENEREEE
ERAREZER ARMMUGEAMBREN
E2N MELBEENAUOSHENEESE
%EE%WWAK¥‘W“W$ B2 3 0 =X 1Y
BREIR L -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
reasonableness of the selection of valuation model,
adoption of key assumptions and input data by
reference to the historical information. In particular, we
have tested the future cash flow forecast prepared by
management on whether it is agreed to the budget
approved by the board of directors and compared the
budget with actual results available up to the report
date. We have also evaluated the appropriateness of the
assumptions, including the sales growth rates and gross
profit margin against latest market expectations.

BARAANBARFER T ESEEENTHE MK
ARERBRRMNEABERHEERIEENSIEMERN
BEtE - R - BHPEEAR T ARNERRA
B EESRE RS EESIEDE SR B R
iﬁﬁhﬁ#AAm METTHE - HABERN
AEBERRNEEL BRHEEEREIMEMNRE R
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We have also evaluated the discount rate employed in
the calculation of value-in-use by reviewing its basis of
calculation and comparing its input data to market
sources.

BHMBEENAEFREMB L EH ABIBEMNT S E
Ri&  LEMRFETAUNAEREAEENTREK -

As any changes in these assumptions and input to
valuation model may result in significant financial impact,
we have tested management’s sensitivity analysis in
relation to the key inputs to the impairment assessment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and
the Audit and Risk Management Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

A==
wh O

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT—_TF+-_A=+—HItFE

O 4L
VAN
- on

REMmZONE%E

2020 2019
—EC-EHF —E—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E AR® T ARET T
Revenue BT 7 275,987 258,158
Cost of sales &S KA (167,887) (143,137)
Gross profit EF 108,100 115,021
Other income H bl A 8 3,719 3,030
Selling and distribution costs 3 E o iE B A (84,476) (104,724)
Administrative expenses THRAX (27,332) (30,570)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of ZHRKERZ
impairment losses recognised in (R EEKLER)/
respect of trade receivables B (B 18 2k B B 21 (2,784) 4,807
Other expenses HEMp X (31) (461)
Operating loss KB R (2,804) (12,897)
Finance costs B%ER 9 (1,234) (2,267)
Loss before taxation A EE (4,038) (15,164)
Income tax credit FFr 45 75 [0 8¢ 10 - 9,064
Loss for the year attributable to KAREE ARG Z
owners of the Company FANEE 11 (4,038) (6,100)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) £ b B A 2 & U A/
(ZH)
Item that will not be reclassified TEWENHERE
subsequently to profit or loss: mMIEE -
Exchange differences arising on R EKEKRE
translation of financial statements a0 BR AN A7 M B BE
from functional currency to =%
presentation currency 104 (976)
Loss and total comprehensive expense 7~ A & B A &1L 2
for the year attributable to owners of ~ FREEB N 2E X
the Company 4858 (3,934) (7,076)
Loss per share BRER 14
Basic HE K RMB(0.1277) RMB(0.1929)
cents cents
AR¥(0.1277)L A R¥(0.1929)1ll
Diluted #E RMB(0.1277) RMB(0.1929)
cents cents
ARH(0.1277) AER#(0.1929)1L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

tm e B Bk IR &

As at 31 December 2020 R=ZE=FF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—T-FTF —"ThNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M | ARET T AR®ET T

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE - WE NERE 17 78,699 98,305
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 10,853 30,425
89,552 128,730

Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 19 27,307 29,382
Right to returned goods asset REFEZER 20 920 2,319
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H th JE W BR 3K 21 24,203 26,053
Amounts due from related parties JrE Uit 728 Bt 5 mRIR 33(a) 242 1,493
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KR 22 122,342 102,195
175,014 161,442
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENERR 23 81,137 75,676
Amounts due to related parties JE 1< B B8 5 3K IB 33(a) 74 47
Contract liabilities SR ON=K 24 15,360 10,775
Refund liabilities BEAE 25 1,450 3,894
Lease liabilities HEESE 18 11,156 7,330
Bank borrowing RITER 26 — 9,650
Provision TIRE A 27 338 338
109,515 107,710
Net current assets REBEEFEE 65,499 53,732
Total assets less current liabilities EEFE 155,051 182,462

Non-current liability kREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 325 23,802
154,726 158,660
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

Le SRR E (8)

As at 31 December 2020 R=ZE=FF+=-A=+—H
2020 2019
—2-FF _—_T-HF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

i B ARETRE S ARETT

Capital and reserves BRARFE
Share capital A% AN 28(a) 277,932 277,932
Reserves ] 28(b) (123,206) (119,272)
Total equity T 25 4B 5 154,726 158,660

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
FoR RSIR
Director

EE

FI3E13HEMNGEAUBHRREESTE
R-BE-—F=A=+H#ELTHER
REEBRERT:

Mr. CHEN Zheng He
FRIEES

Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A=Y L ES

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T —_ZT&F+_-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREBREAES
Share Share Statutory Capital Merger Translation Other Accumulated
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RE  RAEE EERE EARE ANRE EXRRE HbHG RiEE RZAH
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTLE ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTI ARBTR ARETT ARETT
(note 28(0)) (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))
(Msrosp)  (Hizrosp)) (Mizkos() (MEEos() (MisE2sp)) (HizE28(b)

At 1 January 2019 A_E-N&—HA—H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (32,232 9421  (1,551,204) 165,682
Loss for the year ERNER - - - - - - - (6,100) (6,100)
Other comprehensive expense K2 E % &

for the year
Exchange differences arisingon BN EBREZEHZE

translation of financial statements

from functional currency to

presentation currency - - - - - (976) - - (976)
Total comprehensive expense EREESHAE

for the year - - - - - (976) - (6,100) (7,076)
Effect of share options RE M AR

— Shares issue upon exercise  — {71 i iE

(note 28) (B zE28) 54 1,165 - (1,165) - - - - 54

— Lapse — k3 - - - (1,649) - - - 1,649 -
At 31 December 2019 “NE+=A=+—-H 277,932 1401815 49,887 - 8468  (33,208) 9421  (1,555,655) 158,660
At 1 January 2020 RZZZ25-F—-H 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 - 8,468 (33,208) 9,421 (1,555,655) 158,660
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - = = (4,038) (4,038)
Other comprehensive income HEh2@EmEA

for the year
Exchange differences arising on BONEBBRE I ELEZR

translation of financial statements

from functional currency to

presentation currency - - - - - 104 - - 104
Total comprehensive income/ ERE2EBA/ () B8

(expense) for the year - - - - - 104 - (4,038) (3,934)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-FE+-R=+—H 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 - 8,468 (33,104) 9,421 (1,559,693) 154,726
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

moRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—Z—_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTE AR®TT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& TEE
Loss before taxation i Bl B 1 (4,038) (15,164)
Adjustments for: BTIIELFAE
Bank interest income |RITH B U A (1,563) (514)
Government grants received BT 18 B (1,143) (1,403)
Reversal of allowance for inventories GFEREERE 2 b # (304) (2,946)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BELRIETE
equipment 22,363 20,691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 7,369 7,708
Finance costs % E A 1,234 2,267
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) B 5 EWER R TER
recognised in respect of trade receivables BB E B/ R EEE
[o] 38%) 2,784 (4,807)
Gain on lease modification BREEER 2K (375) —
Loss on disposals of property, plant and BEYHE  WE &K
equipment Bk 2 182
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WEDE BWE MR 29 2
Obsolete inventories written-off B HR 1T & TR EE 1,401 2,547
Operating cash flows before working capital LEECEBEAI2KEE
changes ERE 27,759 8,563
Decrease in inventories FER D 978 10,627
Decrease in right to returned goods asset REGFE RS 1,399 73
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other 5 & H MWK
receivables (3 n) /m A (1,022) 14,574
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5 Rk EAMENKIE
payables 1 0/ O 2) 5,461 (5,692)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JE 1) 8 Bt T 3k I
related parties 1 0/ O 2) 27 (2,441)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from FE W RE B 5 IR IE R A/
related parties (1) 1,150 (1,150)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 4,585 3,188
Decrease in refund liabilities 1@ BRABERD (2,444) (270)
Cash generated from operations KEEENRESM 37,893 27,472
Income tax paid B ATE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ENFPECERSH - ©)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZEELXNRESFEHE 37,893 27,466
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GeREREE (W)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—-ZT-TF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
e 3 —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ET T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETE

Withdrawal of deposit with bank IREERITIE K - 20,000

Repayment from related parties RE B ER 101 4,363

Bank interest received B UWIR1THI B 1,563 729

Proceeds from disposals of property, EEWE W };E% NEE 1)

plant and equipment Fr 18 5018 128 91

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BBEMKE (2,975) (4,226)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM INVESTING  R&EE (Fif)/E4EW

ACTIVITIES BeTFHE (1,183) 20,957
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE

Repayment of bank borrowing BERITENK (9,650) (12,550

Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (7,073) (7,001)

Interest paid =ENEAPS (1,234) (2,267)

New bank borrowing raised FTIGIRTT {ﬁ = - 9,650

Government grants received W B B #0 B & 1,143 1,403

Proceeds from exercise of share options 171 I SR B #E P 15 3K 18 - 54
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEETEFTANE S FEE

ACTIVITIES (16,814) (10,711)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBEESESEYEMFE

EQUIVALENTS 19,896 37,712
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENzBERBEBESEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 102,195 65,483
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE [EXRSE) &

CHANGES 251 (1,000)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND REXKzZ2HENBEZE

OF THE YEAR, representing bank balances ~ #): B8R 1T & F LRI &

and cash 122,342 102,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

% © B 75 ¥ 2% P 52

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—Z—_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

General

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Fortune
Station Limited (“Fortune Station”), which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is owned as to: (1) 49.57%
by Heroic Hour Limited, a company that is beneficially owned
as to 22.00% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive
officer and an executive director of the Company, and 78.00%
by Mr. CHEN Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters; and (2)
50.43% by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Directors”).

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at
Bawang Industrial Park, 468 Guanghua 3rd Road, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510450, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
principal subsidiaries of the Group where the primary economic
environment is in the PRC. Other than the subsidiaries
established in the PRC which functional currencies are RMB,
the functional currency of the Company and other subsidiaries
is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& 8 B 15 ¥R R b GE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the
following amendments to IFRSs, which include IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards (“IAS(s)”), amendments and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”) of the IASB which are effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning 1 January 2020:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material
and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark
and IFRS 7 Reform

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRSs and the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

£ © Bl 85 ¥R 2% Bl GX (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(”|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states
“information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity”. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements. A
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users.

The application of these amendments in the current year had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

S Bl 3% ¥R % Bif % (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards

(”|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4

and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRSs

Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments®

Reference to Conceptual
Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current and Non-current®

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use®

Onerous Contacts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2'

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020 cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

The Directors anticipate that, except as described below, the
application of other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the

Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

£ © Bl 85 ¥R 2% Bl GX (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(”|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees 1o elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments
results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021; and (i) there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

A lease applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying IFRS 16 as if the
changes were not lease modifications. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments is accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2020. The Directors anticipate that the application
of the amendment will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

2.
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]
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+—-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the
investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

£ © Bl 85 ¥R 2% Bl GX (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company.

All'intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

U Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o The Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created and
enhanced; or

° The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented.

The Group recognised revenue from the sales of goods
including (i) hair-care products; (i) skin-care products; and (iii)
other household and personal care products.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products.

Right of return

When a contract provides a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the consideration received from
the customer is variable because the contract allows the
customer to return the products. The Group uses the expected
value method to estimate the goods that will be returned. For
goods expected to be returned, the Group presents a refund
liability as “Refund liabilities” and an asset for the right to recover
products from a customer as “Right to returned goods asset”.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract or modification
date, as appropriate. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a significant event
or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using revised discount rate.

° the lease payments change due to changes in an index or
rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used).

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs, less lease
incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are depreciated
over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease modification

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease maodification that is not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable loss for the year.
Taxable loss differs from loss before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and immature bearer plants less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Bearer plants are classified as immature until the produce can
be commercially harvested. At that point, immature bearer
plants are reclassified to bearer plants and depreciation
commences. Immature bearer plants are measured at
accumulated costs.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method, and include expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of the production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
and short-term deposits as defined above.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on
the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses (‘ECL”), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial assets other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent
reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item (note 8).

= 5T BUR @)

&M A&
& BT E (W)

BB BRI ENDBEE (EHT
a) (%)
CRARMBHAAREERAR
EHRRIENEESEAEAS
(5 5 PR A0 PR R R 3k
EHEEEESE DENHDE
RIS 2 M EAEE LR
BERAKBEBETHE 2R
AENEERERACRAEES
2180515 5 AT 8 S <

MEWAT IR HR AT ENER
TAMEBRMNEEZER HREER
SREEAXBEEREENINE
MEE BRREABLEGERIENS
MEEN MNEBERAZREREE
FHABRNERNXHE UK
KERZENERMEE  MEBRA
BZeMEENERN RHEHKAN
R -MEEENRSHA FE
XEBETRMTEANGFEERRA MK
B UBZEREETBEEER
BRIMBEKRASRZEMEER
HEENERMNEFE -

MEWAERSEBRD
A JIH B A (K 3E8) -

TEEENHE



FIER(EE)EZEREBRAT —Z-2FFRH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

£ © Bl 85 ¥R 2% Bl GX (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments
in debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s operations.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic; or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) the debt instrument has a low risk of
default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and (i)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk when
the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

° information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date and other relevant forward-looking information.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (iij held-for-trading, or (iii)
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to capital
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right of use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -T&F+—A=+—HItFE

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination of lease term

Lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term. In determining the
lease term at the commencement date for leases that include
renewal or termination options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option, including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset to the
Group’s operations. The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in circumstance that is
within the Group’s control. Any increase or decrease in the
lease term would affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets recognised in future years.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment of trade receivables is based on assumptions
about ECL. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience, existing market conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operated and forward-looking information at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the assessment
and it may be necessary to make additional impairment charge
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. At 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was approximately RMB22,110,000
(2019: RMB21,478,000), net of allowance for impairment of
trade receivables of approximately RMB7,050,000 (2019:
RMB4,612,000). During the year ended 31 December 2020,
impairment loss of trade receivables of approximately
RMB2,784,000 (2019: reversal of impairment loss:
RMB4,807,000) was recognised).

WS A B 5 T
A== 2 EERIRE @

FHARERARZEERE

P2 i B R LR 2ROR EL A A 5T RO T
AR ZM EERRMAMELNER
B&R HEBREABET —EH
BEENEENBEREERE

RABOER  JIHWT -
WHEURIRZHE

ESRBRFENBREEESZER
HEBHEEBANBR - &8 E
EHEEREMEEREFTED
WA - R E B EKERE R KRB
ERXE UERAEEEREHK
B E 5P 4% B A0 A BE 14 B KL Wm%
ﬁ EHERBMEAEANRE
SHTAHERELEERTE lm
AREBEVEBEEGREAEEREME
HlmkNeaHFHmEPEMBIE
ER - R-_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—
H BRUEREEEBENAARK
22,110,000t (ZF - F: AR¥
21,478,0007T ) + JE W BR 3K B (B % #
SRR ARE7,050,000C (ZE—Ah
F:ARK4612,000T) HE_ZE
—EF+-_A=Z+—BLEFERN-
MR THARE2784000TTHE 5
EWFIBERERBR(ZZE—NLF &
EEKXEBD : AR 4,807,0007T) °



FIER(EE)EZEREBRAT —Z-2FFRH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

£ © Bl 85 ¥R 2% Bl GX (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of inventories

The Group makes the allowance for inventories based on
assessments of the net realisable value and ageing analysis of
inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately RMB27,307,000 (2019:
RMB29,382,000), net of accumulated allowance of
approximately RMB1,585,000 (2019: RMB1,889,000). During
the year ended 31 December 2020, obsolete inventories
written-off and reversal of allowance for inventories of
approximately RMB1,401,000 (2019: RMB2,547,000) and
RMB304,000 (2019: RMB2,946,000) were recognised,
respectively.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (i) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

The future cash flow is estimated based on past performance
and expectation for market development, including but not
limited to the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic. As the current
environment is uncertain, the estimated cash flows and discount
rate are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainty.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were approximately
RMB78,699,000 and RMB10,853,000 (2019: RMB98,305,000
and RMB30,425,000) respectively. No impairment losses were
recognised for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets for the current year (2019: nil).

Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis between the rates of 4% to 50% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment
are available for use. The estimated useful lives that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying values of property, plant and equipment was
approximately RMB78,699,000 (2019: RMB98,305,000).
Depreciation of approximately RMB22,363,000 (2019:
RMB20,691,000) has been recognised for the current year.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank borrowing, net of bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. Financial Instruments $RTH
(@) Categories of financial instruments () €MIAER
2020 2019
—=-2f —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Financial assets ERMEE
At amortised cost (including cash and ~ # #4pk R (B 53R & M
cash equivalents) BEEEY) 145,174 124,437
Financial liabilities cRAE
At amortised cost B85 A K 79,530 82,140
(b) Financial risk management objective and (b) EMARETEERERBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, amounts
due to related parties and bank borrowing. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 2% (2019: 2%) of the Group’s sales is
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure and
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and
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6. @I R um
b) SREABREEEARERBE

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(#&)
45 B (#)
B g (&)

AEENIINEFBEZEEEE
REBERE2WRHRZEEEE
m

Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2020 2019 2020 2019

—R-%& -z 5 —B_8& -z 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR | AR%T1 [AREFRE| ARST

RMB AR #& 6,458 99 7,523 7,907
HK$ T 554 423 933 1,730
United States dollars ZE ¢

(‘UsD”) (I=mx) 1,635 931 — —

In the opinion of the Directors, no sensitivity analysis is
presented because the risk is considered insignificant.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank balances (see
note 22). The management of the Group considered that
a reasonably possible change in interest rates would not
have a material impact to the Group’s result.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank
borrowing (see note 26) (2020: nil). In the opinion of the
Directors, no sensitivity analysis is presented because the
risk is considered insignificant.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties and
bank balances and cash. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
monitors closely the economic environment and where
appropriate, takes actions to limit its exposure to
customers that are severely impacted.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in IFRS 9 to measure the allowance for
impairment at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
ECL collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as the
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For non trade-related amounts due from related parties,
the Group has assessed whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime
rather than 12-month ECL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -T&F+—A=+—HItFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Management considered that other receivables to be low
credit risk and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or with good
reputation.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+—-A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. @I B @)
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) eMREARETEAERBE
policies (Continued) (#)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE(#E)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk FEEERRZ #E

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

REBRFNEERRFRER
BMTAIIER :

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
i ot BEFEHCEBENESE
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk ~ 12-month ECL
of default or has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and that are not credit-impaired (refer to as
Stage 1)
BT RGBFZEARRE BN KEER 12AEREEBE
NREERRIERERZEEMEREEE
EREMERERIZE)
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a  Lifetime ECL — not credit-
significant increase in credit risk since initial impaired
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
(refer to as Stage 2)
xR BR NEEFEHIIIBRRBREERR ERHPRHBEERE —
BYFHERARBZEMEREEEE RELEGEERE
WE(ERBER22ZE)
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer
to as Stage 3)
=0 REREVEBERWERENR A EME CRAREREEEE -
BRTNEBEECELAGERE(ERE ESELEGEERE
32 %)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
G ERETEKSAORBREMBRAER AESED M

SER & A B [E A B AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure

to credit risk by credit risk rating grades.

6.

£/ T Buw)

b) eREABEEAERRSE
(#)
13 £5 B8 (4)
EFEERAR BEE)

TRHANTAEEGRHEER
REENMAEEZARE &
;ff AA#%&P¥E{;§ "r" °©

2019
—2-NF
Gross
Internal 12-month or lifetime carrying Loss  Net carrying
Notes credit rating ECL amount allowance amount
RBEA  12EBA REEE

st FPR ERARAEEEA BE REEHE  REFE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARBTT ARETT

Trade receivables 21 Note Lifetime ECL (not credit 29,160 (7,050) 22,110 26,090 (4,612) 21,478

impaired)

ER L6 B = ERHEREEER
(RBEECERE)

Amounts due from 33 Performing ~ 12-month ECL 242 - 242 343 = 343

related parties

FE Wi A et 77 &) 12 A RAEEER

Other receivables 21 Performing ~ 12-month ECL 480 - 480 421 - 421
H o fE R f&17 12 A EREEEE

Bank balances 22 Performing 12-month ECL 122,342 - 122,342 102,195 — 102,195
RITHRE E1T 128 ARBAEEER

152,224 (7,050) 145,174 129,049 (4,612) 124,437

Note: The Group has applied simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the

loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Details are set out in note 21.

M ARECERAMEOBRRMBERE
EROFRFTEEAARMEEE
BTHRERRE - F BRI N E
21 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+—-A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s concentration of
credit risk by geographical location is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 99% (2019: 98%) of the total trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has concentration of
credit risk, as 36% (2019: 19%) of the total trade
receivables, which was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash on demand to meet its liquidity requirement in the
short and longer term; this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters.

6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. T E @

(b) Financial risk management objective and b) e2MAKEEARERBFK
policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) e B R PR (48)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRIFWAREFB ZIESTE S G
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BEMEBEAGB TS L E
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the ReoiZR DENRANEEBIEL
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on YR HEBHITRESHE
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to BZXRFERBESTEdH T H
pay. The maturity dates are based on the agreed HIETELMEBENEEARE
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and ZEHHAUMEEERRAE
principal cash flows. W-XPBEMNERAXER®

ME o

At31December2020 W=-Z-F%
+=-A=+-A
Non-derivative ETELRER
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 [ H ft i it

A 79,456 - - 79,456 79,456

Amounts due to related & {5 B3 B 5 7B
parties 74 - - 74 74
79,530 - - 79,530 79,530

Lease liabilities HEEE 11,470 120 360 11,950 11,481




120

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& 8 B 15 ¥R R b GE (48)
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. @I R um
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) eMEAEEEARRBEK
policies (Continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B R B (48)
On demand or Total
within undiscounted Carrying
One year 2-5years  QOver 5 years cash flows amount
BEKRK AR
—ER “ERF BARE HeRBd EEEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®Tr ARETT AR%®TE AR®Tx
At 31 December2019 R=-Z—hfF
+=R=+-8
Non-derivative kTESRER
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 2 5 & H o fE
HE 72,443 - - 72,443 72,443
Amounts due to related &5 B3 5 20 1E
parties 47 — — 47 47
Bank borrowing RITER 9,672 — — 9,672 9,650
82,162 — — 82,162 82,140
Lease liabilities MERR 8,608 25,315 390 34,373 31,132

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
current financial assets and current financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
approximate their fair values due to the short maturities.

() LanREHEZ&MIA

RKARIEERE BAREFEEY
ﬁ%i&%m/}lb@]%ﬂé?&”lb@
TRAEEER_T_TFR=
T-NF+ZA=+—HEH
WEIE - RHEEmAELDURA
AfEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods, net of
discounts and sales related taxes. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue for the year is as follows.

EXBERTHEHR

EEBEHEMGKITMMEE LR
TERNBEERA SEFEZER
DA

2020 2019
—E-2F —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR%Tx
Revenue from contracts with EEBR RS ERISE155%
customers within the scope of HERAEFNEHWA
IFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products REXrEEROHE
Manufacturing and sales of the household =% BE K & A 32 A )
and personal care products EEMIFE
Hair-care products EEEM 249,230 234,142
Skin-care products & B E o 1,889 1,798
Other household and personal care HEiRAKEAEEER
products 24,868 22,218
275,987 258,158
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BREVIBEANERESRNYSE
customers by timing of recognition
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTE ARETT
Timing of revenue recognition W A TR R R R
At a point in time R —EEE 275,987 258,158

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered. The Directors
have chosen to organise the Group around differences in
products. The segments are managed separately as each
operating segment offers different products which require
different production information to formulate different strategies.

BAOREREFBEDMERI AT
EREARE AARAZHITE
ERELAE BERAXNEM
MBER - TEELRAREEERER
EmZR2KABAEE - T E=
REBEBSOERSHMN EKBEER
BEREEDERERD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing of recognition (Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

o Hair-care products

o Skin-care products

° Other household and personal care products

Operating segment including manufacture and sale of other
household and personal care products have been aggregated
into a single reporting segment after taking into account that
none of which are of a sufficient size to be reported separately.
The CODM is provided with segment information concerning

segment revenue and result. No analysis of segment assets or
segment liabilities is presented as they are not regularly

EXRERDBER @

BanlAnERERS 8 (#)

AEEZAREHEEDBA
. HEER
. EEESD

° EmmRAREAEEE®R

K D BB B HE At 5K BE RN R A IR

EMMNEEMBEE  EEENLA
—EARHARENDIAUNEBRS

B EBEeUR—EEBFNREDE -

FTEEBELERRECTHERBEEBE S
HWAMDIEENEE AR D
ﬂé?ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%\gm%ﬁ

provided to the CODM. FTEELERKERE AREEY
CFHEITHAT -
Segment revenue and results DHEEERERS
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results NTRAEBIZARE D BRA R
by reportable and operating segments. HEDNT -
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
HttRAR
EERER ERER BABEER EH
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
—2-2F _T-NF SBS8F _T-NF SBSBF _T-NF SBSTE _T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 ' RMB’000 RMB’'000 | RMB’000 RMB’'000 | RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT AREBTE ARETT AREBTE ARETT ARBTRE ARETr
Sales to external customers HERNBEP 249,230 234,142 1,889 1,798 24,868 22,218 275,987 258,158
Segment profit/(loss) A EHEF/ (EE) 4,190 (6,179 (768) %4 (6,878) (7,889) (3,456) (12,970)
Bank interest income RITFEHA 1,563 514
Other income Hig A 2,156 2,516
Corporate and other unallocated 48 5 & 9 it 2 E
expenses X (4,258) (4,639
Finance costs B E A (43) (585)
Loss before taxation HATE R (4,038) (15,164)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7. & % ZE R 2 IE R @)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PHMERBERER(E)
. - . 2% ) & =
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the %f 3%] E FEJ EI’] 1%( JF;S f;f
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. ﬁ%ﬁ% 5 A ,{E'flg ¥ 12 8 7( Eéﬁ
3 =
Segment re;ults represer]t the profit e.arned by./(loss from)leach 18) REERTHE Hﬁl A~ 4= EE
segment without allocation of bank interest income, gain on BHlz BT ®EB)  EBIE KBk
sales of scrap materials, government grants, net foreign PREENAN - EZHHM RITE
exchange losses, central administrative costs, directors’ ARF B e QTJ RER _ﬁﬁa gﬁfﬁ ﬁ
emoluments and interest on bank borrowing. This is the EEE@KA FIZHMITESRE 251
measure reported to the executive directors of the Company for =
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
Other segment information Hftt 58 EH
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
AR
HEER EEER BABEER A3t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“B-2F —T-N\F | S8 —T-N\F | ZB8E —_T-F | ZBS8E —T-NF
RMB000 | RMB'000 | RMB000 K  RMB000 | RMB000  RMB0O0 | RMBO00  RMB'000
ARETE | ARBTT [ARETE | ARBTT [ARETE | ARETT [ARETE | ARETT
Amounts included in the TEABLERR
measure of segment results 23 AFE
Additions to property, plantand ¥ % « BiE R R &
equipment 2,687 3,833 20 29 268 364 2975 4,226
Depreciation of property, plantand ¥1%  BiE kR EHTE
equipment 20,195 18,766 153 144 2,015 1,781 22,363 20,691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# 14 EH & 6,654 6,991 51 54 664 663 7,369 7,708
Interest on lease liabilities HEAETFE 1,076 1,525 8 12 107 145 1,191 1,682
Loss on disposals of property, ~ REWE  BERXE
plant and equipment HE% 2 165 - 1 - 16 2 182
Write-off of property, plantand ~ REE#W ¥ « BE MRk G
equipment OR=ES 26 2 - - 3 - 29 2
Gain on lease modification ERRESRz KR (338) - @) - (34) - (375) -
Impairment loss/(reversal of HE S EME SRR
impairment loss) recognisedin ~ Ji & &1/ (WEEE B
respect of trade receivables %) 2,514 (4,340) 19 89 251 (434) 2,784 (4,807)
Reversal of allowance for FEEE
inventories (275) (2,672) © 20) @7) (254) (304) (2.946)
Obsolete inventories written-off ~ # #7725 i EE 1,265 2,310 10 18 126 219 1,401 2,547
Amounts regularly providedto EHRHLTEEE
the CODM but notincluded  RFZEHEHE B
in the measure of segment ~ REFER S P&
results Mt ES
Interest on bank borrowing RITEHAL - - - - - - 43 585
Bank interest income RITFIBMA - - - - - = (1,563) (514)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7. 2 ¥ ZE KR 0 & E £ @)

Geographical information it = FJ#H

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (country NREBKRESERTEBERERR(
of domicile) and Hong Kong. EBER)FMEE -

The geographical location of customers is based on the location BEEMTEMR DBEBEINESRM
at which the goods delivered. The geographical location of the NEETFT ERDEEMNMBEMLE
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the DREEEERMENE (WWEY
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment and right- ¥ BEMBZEBENEREEE)ME
of-use assets. 7E °

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
RENBEFHEA ERBEE

2019 2019
—E-NEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

The PRC (country of FEFTERR)

domicile) 271,622 255,134 88,746 127,747
Hong Kong BB 2,016 2,336 806 983
Thailand £ 814 236 — —
Malaysia S i 1,535 452 - —
Total rEt 275,987 258,158 89,552 128,730

Information about major customers FEEFRMR
Details of the customer contributing over 10% of total revenue HAEFEEERBRINEXENE
of the Group are as follows: PEBEYRET :
2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AR T T
Customer A* ZE A 30,281 30,157

Revenue from segment of hair-care products * KERDEBEEZE DB A
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8. HALUW A

2019
—E-hF
RMB’000
ARBFT
Bank interest income ]RIT A B M A 1,563 514
Gain on sales of scrap materials BB R = 690 845
Government grants (note (a)) BT 48 Bh & (FfY 5% (@) 1,143 1,403
Others HAth 323 268
3,719 3,030
Note: i
(@  Various government grants were granted to the Group in respect of application @ AKEECSHEETEEEERERTHORE
of Chinese herbs in daily products. During the year ended 31 December 2020, AMEEBRN#Y B2 T -_FF+=
the Group recognised government grants of RMB80,000 related to A=+—B KA&E®ERT AR%B80,000
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Government of the Hong Kong TRERBFITRERFRHENARES
Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund. There are no TROTR A 26 51 81 o B R R 17 /O 6 1 A0
unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies related to receipts of these Hpp Mg mp AR EEE-
grants.
9. Finance Costs 9. MBEH
2019
—T-hNF
RMB’000
AR®ET T
Interest on: T B -
Bank borrowing RITER 43 585
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,191 1,682

1,234 2,267
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10. Income Tax Credit

10. PS5 %i o B

2020 2019

— === F _T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTE AR®TT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FEGEMRSEHR (D

FrigH )

— Current year —AFE — 6
— Over provision in prior years (note (d))  — LA Bl 5 & SR 28 B &

(M 3E(d) - (9,070)

— (9,064)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC
EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the PRC EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

From 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021, under
relevant PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, for PRC
enterprises that qualifies for small enterprises, annual
taxable income below RBMB3.0 million and thin-profit
enterprises with an annual taxable income of RMB1.0
million or less are applicable to the effective tax rate of 5%.
Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were qualified
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, was qualified as a HNTE since 2009. However,
Bawang Guangzhou did not have any assessable profits
subject to EIT for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

BREFPEEEMBIE(EE
FIBBREAD REXMBHREZE
AT SSE T = N = o 5
FE-_FTTNEF-A—HER
25% °

H-_EZ—hF—A—HE_Z
——f+ZA=+—0 1B
HEPBRCEMBRERE  #
PEEREHBABENARESO
BATHNRAEREFRER
FRUWAAREIOBE LHIAT
MMFCENEERPREE
REBRHES %EH - AEER
FEBERKFAAREERSEZ
B o

FECEMBHREATLES
RS iR S ISR i SRS
X¥DBE MEBSZERND
EUUZE1%MERB X -
BFET(EMNEBERRAA(HEFLEE
MDEBZZ2ZENFREERT A
SR EE-Am HEZ
E-EFR-_F-NEF+A
=+ —HUEFE HFTBIEML
RBEERAHBNTCERSRZ
JER T & F o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-—ZT-ZTF+-A=+—HItFE

10. Income Tax Credit (Continued)

(b)  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

(c) Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman lIslands and the BVI for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

(d) Based on the facts and circumstances and an
independent tax consultant report obtained by the
Directors in the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
concluded that there was an over provision of EIT in prior
years and credited in profit or loss for the year ended 31

10. TS % B # @)

b BE-_T_TFR_FT-NF
TZA=t—BLHFE *&
BB IR AGANEBRE
M2 RERR B A > P DA 30 & &1
REBFEH -

© REFEHELABEXES
AR A N R B NEEEBER
BE_Z_ZTFR-_FT—NF
T A=+—RIEFEHNHA
SEHRENEBRIHENEIM
A -

d ERFEERBERARZESFMR
—E2-hhF+ZA=+—H1t
FERNESHN—MDBUNBE
MRS ANEE DA
FEGFAEBETIRTBEDCEMN

December 2019. /R BBHEFABEZZ—
NE+-_A=+—HFEMNIE
= o
Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss FAMBEHGEAEBER 2 BAIERE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss AR -
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
—E-SE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
Loss before taxation i Al 18 (4,038) (15,164)
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax 1% Zliiﬂg T 15 354 7 & 25% 51
rate of 25% (2019: 25%) BEZBHBE(CZCZE-NEF:
25%) (1,010) (3,791)
Effect of different tax rates of entities REMADEERR ?& &2 A
operating in other jurisdictions MEZHIETE 4,924 2,951
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ & 15 & A Z %Fﬁ“ e
tax purpose 1,755 2,905
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ HARFRA Z R IE &
purpose (2,906) (4,171)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREEB MG E 202 5,427
Income tax on concessionary rate BEBEMEH 3) (7)
Utilisation of deductible temporary E) 0] 4540 MY oK T SR Y BT B
differences not recognised HER (532) (3,308)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRAREROUANFEERS
recognised & B (2,430) —
Over provision in prior years VA B F 2 ERRA B A - (9,070)
Income tax credit for the year F TS 5 [ 5 - (9,064)
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10. Income Tax Credit (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused estimated tax
losses of approximately RMB311,486,000 (2019:
RMB327,667,000) and RMB36,385,000 (2019:
RMB35,161,000) for certain subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong
Kong respectively. The tax losses incurred by the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC (except for HNTE) will expire in five
years from the year in which the loss originated, while the ones
incurred by the subsidiaries in Hong Kong will not expire under
current tax legislation in Hong Kong. With effective from 1
January 2018, the tax losses incurred by HNTE will expire in ten
years from the year in which the loss originated. No tax losses
have expired during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019. No deferred tax asset had been recognised as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 in respect of the estimated tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB360,274,000 (2019:
RMB363,821,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& 8 B 15 ¥R R b GE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

10. P15 % B # (@)

He_Z2-_ZFZF+-_A=+—8"
EEETFERNBNEENL D FA
AIARFERAMGEE KBRS D
B AR 311,486,000t(ZF — N
F: AR #327,667,0007T) F1 A R
36,385,000 t(ZFE—LF: AR
35,161,0007T ) ° £ F B 3% ;A 5 it &9
FRA (SR ERN TEE
MMEEL BEFEBEEZABLF
NE®R: MEEFBEMBTRAAN
BAEMBMBEL BEREBERTH
MEER  TgEme =T —N
F-—A—HR sHBEBEGCEESE
MBEKERSEEELE FRI10F
NEH 2T _FTFM_F—
NWNFE+-_A=Z=+—BLFER %
EXMRKEBELAEKER S &2
E-EFN_E-NAF+_A=+
—H - BRARRFE R T A IE A
B HAEREEREEENTER
FRUR B K -

BE-FT-TF+-A=+—H"
AREBANBREEEEZEEHNARE
360,274,000t (ZE— NLF : AR
363,821,0007T) ° AP KAl BE A FE
T F) B B] FR AR HE 30 AT K 0 A9 BT R 14
ZR AR ERCEMEEERERHE
AENEEEE=ESR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. Loss for the Year

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

& & Bl 3% $R = 0 51 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

1. FREE

FABEZME/GIA) THIER

2020 2019
— === F _T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AREFTT
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B 2 903 1,100
Cost of inventories recognised as WRAERIZ ZFERK AN
an expense (note (a)) (KT 3E(a)) 168,191 146,083
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BENMREITE
equipment 22,363 20,691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 7,369 7,708
Loss on disposals of property, plantand EEW %  HE R & E W
equipment -ES 2 182
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 3 ¥ % - W= K& & & 29 2
Net foreign exchange losses ME 3 B3 18 2R 98 242
Research and development costs BRI 2 FEKAE
recognised as an expense 13,586 14,323
Staff costs (note (b)) & B A A (FfY 5% (o)) 55,909 54,721
Reversal of allowance for inventories FTEKEER 2O #
(included in cost of inventories (BIEEERAEBREN
recognised as an expense) FEKAR) (304) (2,946)
Obsolete inventories written-off (included i1 B8 17 & %5 & (&2 3 £ FE 3R
in cost of inventories recognised as ABERNTFEERAS)
an expense) 1,401 2,547

Notes:

GEE

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included depreciation of (@)
property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use assets and staff
costs of approximately RMB21,278,000 (2019: RMB20,033,000),
RMB7,369,000 (2019: RMB7,708,000) and RMB21,967,000 (2019:
RMB17,002,000) respectively. The amounts were also included in the

respective amounts disclosed above.

Staff costs included redundancy costs of RMB626,000 for the year ended 31 (b)

December 2020 (2019: RMB1,154,000).

HRAAIZEEXNABEDE BE
RENE TRAEEENTEREEX
Ko R #H A ANRK21,278000( = =
— NLE 4 A R #20,033,0007T) « 4 A
R ¥736900T (=8 —NLE: ARK
7,708,0007T) & 49 A R #21,967,0007T (=
T—NF G ARK17,002,0007T) © A £
CHEHUEDRBEEUNLBEESREF -

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—-HLEFE"
BEEXRABRIFENRERHAREG626000

T(ZZ—NIF  H AR¥1,154,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

12. Staff Costs

12. EE A
2020 2019
—EEHE —ET—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE AR®TRT

Staff costs (including directors’ and chief {EEX AN (BHEESEN&E

executive’s emoluments) comprise: TBAEHNZSHME) :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EZAERER 54,033 49,459
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKAE FET 8
schemes (note 32) (Pt 7£32) 1,250 4,108
Termination benefits BRE T 626 1,154
55,909 54,721
13. Dividends 13. R E

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2019: nil).

HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-A=1+—8H1t
FEVERMSSKBRTAERE(ZF
—NF &) BE2HRBEEBITER
REMBEB(ZE—NE: &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

14. Loss Per Share 14. SR E 18
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KANBEB ANEML 2 & RERK#
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BEEREBRBEUATEGRTE -

following data:

2020 2019
—E-SHE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AE®TRE  ARETT

Loss &8
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AT E AR AR HEE AEE
the Company for the purpose of basic BRI EARN RS EE

and diluted loss per share Eo)=aRit (4,038) (6,100)
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
’000 ’000
T8’ TR
Number of shares B 4 & B

Weighted average number of ordinary FAUGTEEREREERN
shares for the purpose of basic loss per  JIfEFH EBREBE

share 3,162,289 3,162,289
Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share HRAEEZE_T_ZTEMN_ZT—Ah
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding F+_A=+—HILEELREEA
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 or at the ST TR nAR AtESREE

end of both reporting periods. EEEgREANEERRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2019: six)
directors and the chief executive were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Emoluments paidor A RAREKEA A

receivable in MEERERE
respect of a ST 04|
person’s services &
as a director,
whether of the
Company or its
subsidiaries

Fees we

Emoluments paid or 772 &2 E Kt B A &
receivable in MESHRHEER
respect of HMERREX
director’s other fREHNHE
services in
connection with
the management
of the affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries

Other emoluments  E#El &
Salaries & 2
Contributions to RINEFEE

retirement R
benefits schemes

Aithe

Total emoluments

5. EERESTHRAENE

ENKENAB(ZE—NRF: X
ZVEERERTBRABZME M
T

gExE—_2_2+-A=+—H
1y 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

£ © Bl 85 ¥R 2% Bl GX (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

5. ZEZRESTHRAEME

(%)

gE_E—nhF+-HA=+—H

ILEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiTES ERTES
Mr. CHEN
Mr. CHEN Zheng He Mr.
Qiyuan (Chief ~ Mr. WONG Dr. NGAI CHEUNG  Dr. WANG
(Chairman) executive) Sin Yung Wai Fung Kin Wing Qi Total
REBLE
BRRUR % & (B8R
(X£F%) WITE) EEREE REEET REXEE IREEL A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARETR AR®ETR ARETR
Emoluments paidor A2 FAHEHBA A
receivable in MESHRERY
respect of a X ERH
person’s services [k
as a director,
whether of the
Company or its
subsidiaries
Fees e — — — 263 176 176 615
Emoluments paidor A2 FAHEHBA A
receivable in MESHRHEER
respect of HttEBRBEX
director’s other NREBNH S
services in
connection with
the management
of the affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries
Other emoluments ~ EH &
Salaries E2 =il - 127 1,056 - - - 1,183
Contributions to RINEMEE
retirement %
benefits schemes — 6 16 — — — 22
Total emoluments &irEi& — 133 1,072 263 176 176 1,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_TF+—-A=+—HILFE

15.

16.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

There was no discretionary bonus provided to the Directors for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Mr. CHEN Zheng He is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above included those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive of the Company nor any of the
Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2019: one) was a Director whose emolument is included in
the disclosures in note 15 above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2019: four) individuals were as follows:

15.

16.

EENBESTTHRAENE

(%)

R-ZB_ZEEFN_FT-AF+_H
St REFEOHAHENIA-

B%EE%?EEW‘EZK BB R
PR BBECFMERAEREES
F%ﬂ?TEE’JHEi‘%@)ﬁ@

HE-_ZT-ZTF+=-A=+—8H1t
FE AEEEREERATEEN
EYREREETAHE(ZZT—N
Fom)e

& & % i
ARBSHMALST  —fr (=B —
AE: —f) BEE EHFBNU L

16T - EEAMMUNE(ZF —
JUEE - POfz) B B A 89 B EF 1S 40
T

2020 2019

—E-EHF — &

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREF T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e 2B RER 2,531 1,651
Contributions to retirement benefits RIS A 5T &) 3

schemes 142 160

2,673 1,811

Their emoluments were all within nil to HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB889,000 (2019: equivalent to
approximately RMB880,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and employees) or other
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

E & B2 3N T = = %5 1,000,000
TR EN AR ES889,000L (==
—NF: KRB E R A RS880,000

L) e

RBEE-_ZT-_ZTFR-_FT-NFT+
:Hf-f- HIESEHE A3
VTEXNME T AEERRRKSH
MAL(BREERER)KHEMBE
E ERBBEMAXRNMEAREE
2 BEVRAEAREBAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment

17. 9% - BERRE

Office Immature
Land and Leasehold Motor equipment Display Bearer bearer Construction
buildings Machinery improvements  vehicles and others  furniture plants plants  in progress Total
k3K fEHE WAE THRAK
BEY BE HEXE ERIA RERHM RREE £E4EY £EHED HEIR @
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARKETT ARETT
COST BA
At 1 January 2019 R=ZF-NE—A—H 5,494 126,068 198,837 12,146 21,823 937 43 795 10,465 376,608
Exchange realignment [ 3 ;5 % - - - 173 - - - - - 173
Additions NE - & 2,861 = 968 = = 342 = 4,226
Disposals HE = (1,343) - (70) (59) - - - - (1,472)
Wite off BE = = = = (24) = = = = (24)
At 31 December 2019 and A = Z— N E
1 January 2020 +-A=t—-HEkK
it 35
—A—B 5,494 124,780 201,698 12,249 22,708 937 43 1,137 10,465 379,511
Exchange realignment & 3 % - - - (478) - - - - - (478)
Additions RE - 927 = 169 1,621 = = 258 = 2975
Disposals HE = (1,150) - (150) - - - - - (1,300)
Wiite off BB = (257) = = 29) 6) = = = (285)
At31December 2020 R-Z-TE
+=A=+-H 5494 124,300 201,698 11,790 24,306 932 43 1,395 10465 380,423
ACCUMULATED R E
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NE—F—H 2,061 83,222 135,652 10,948 18,860 856 23 = 9,965 261,587
Exchange realignment  [E R % - - - 149 - - - - - 149
Depreciation provided for 4 747 & & &
the year 247 2,253 17,055 437 697 - 2 — — 20,691
Eliminated on disposals & %44 - (1,083) = (63) (53) = = = = (1,199)
Write off HE - - - - 22) - - - - 22
At 31 December 2019 and A = E— N5
1 January 2020 +-A=+-HBk
“3-%F
—A—-A 2,308 84,392 162,707 11,471 19,482 856 25 — 9,965 281,206
Exchange realignment ~ [E & ;5% - - - (419) - - - - - (419)
Depreciation provided for 4 7 2 # &
the year 247 5141 15,797 305 871 = 2 = = 22,363
Eliminated on disposals ! % B £1 34 - (1,035) - (135) - - - - - (1,170)
Write off HEE - (231) - - 1) @ - - - (256)
At31December 2020 R-Z-TF
+-A=+-H 2,555 88,267 168,504 11,222 20,332 852 27 = 9,965 301,724
CARRYING VALUES REE
At31December 2020 R-T-TF
+-A=+-H 2,939 36,033 33,194 568 3,974 80 16 1,395 500 78,699
At31 December2019  R=-ZT—-N%E
+=A=+—-AH 3,186 40,388 48,991 778 3,226 81 18 1,137 500 98,305
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

LLand and buildings

T AR EY)
Machinery

W 2E

Leasehold improvements
KEHENR T H
Motor vehicles

EHITHE

Office equipment and others
W R S EA
Display furniture

R EME

Bearer plants

EEMNEEY

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress and immature bearer plants until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use. Upon completion and
commissioning for operation, depreciation will be provided at
the appropriate rates specified above.

18. Leases

() Right-of-use assets

17. % - BE RFRE @)

FERERYE . BERR BN
A BAALESHAEEME)
AT BT E AT PR B R B A8 A
o

Over the shorter of term of the lease or 20 years
MHEAER A2 320 F

15 years

154

Over the shorter of term of the lease or 10 years
B R 105

5-8 years

5-84F

5 years

5%

2 years

24

3-25 years

3-25%F

EREIRRTRANEYEE T
RITE BEEEEEEE LRI
VEDAERRE - EETT LK
NEER B2 EXPEEE =X
FtaFHRITE -

18. &
() EAEEE
2020 2019
—2-2f —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE AR®TT

Buildings EZEY

At 1 January R—H—H
Depreciation e

Lease modification MEEBH

30,425 38,133
(7,369) (7,708)
(12,203) —

At 31 December wn+=—A=+—8 10,853 30,425
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

18. Leases (Continued) 18. H & @)
() Right-of-use assets (Continued) (i) HESEEE
The Group has lease arrangements for buildings. The REBERZEYHHAELH -
lease terms are generally ranged from one to thirty years. HEHRE —MAEB1FEI0F -
None of the leases include variable lease payments. FELEHESTBREAENHE
IR e
(ii) Lease liabilities (i) HEAERE
2020 2019
—=-2f —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE AR®TT

Non-current JETRE 325 23,802
Current Vi 11,156 7,330
11,481 31,132

Amount payable under lease liabilities HEAaEREMARIE
2020 2019
— ==& _—_T-hNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE  ARBTT

Within one year —F R 11,156 7,330
After one year but within two years —EP EREUR 14 7,690
After two years but within five years MENLNEREFEUR 45 15,830
After five years AFE 266 282
11,481 31,132

Less: amount due for settlement within & : 1218 B 79 & 1< 2018

12 months (shown under GIRREBEEET)

current liabilities) (11,156) (7,330)
Amount due for settlement after 121d8 A 1& E| 8 &9 FE 1~

12 months Qi) 325 23,802
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

18. Leases (Continued)

(ii) Lease liabilities (Continued)

18. HHE @)

Amount payable under lease liabilities (Continued)

(i) HERRKGE@)
HRAREMREG)

2019

—ET-hnF

RMB’000

ARBT T

At 1 January R—HA—H 31,132 38,133
Interest on lease liabilities HEGEFE 1,191 1,682
Lease payment HER® (8,264) (8,683)
Lease modification HEBH (12,578) —
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 11,481 31,132

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (iii) MRREBREZEH

2019

—E—-NF

RMB’000

ARBT T

Depreciation on right-of-use assets FHEEENE 7,369 7,708
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAGEMNBEXZH 1,191 1,682
Expenses relating to short-term leases 42 HATH & 1878 & A 72 56

Gain on lease modification

ERHER Rz W

375 =

(iv) Others

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total cash
outflow for leases amount to approximately

RMB8,336,000 (2019: RMB8,739,000).

(iv) Efth

BE_Z2-_ZF+-_A=+—
HEFEAR BEMNRER
“EEH B AR ¥8,336,0007T
(ZZE—NnF : AR¥S8,739,000
JL) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

BIEREE)ZERERAH

l!ln
L8

—ECEEER

Inventories 10. &
2020 2019
— == F _—_T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®TT
Raw materials R 15,816 11,771
Work-in-progress =85 4,510 2,244
Finished goods RIAK T 3,519 6,923
Packing materials and consumable goods 6 2 #1 ¥} % 58 ¥ & 3,462 8,444
27,307 29,382

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain slow-moving
inventories, of which allowance was made previously over their
net realisable values, were consumed and/or sold as scarp
materials. As a result, a reversal of allowances for inventories of

BE_ T TF+T_A=+t—HI
FEA - XL HET (P AA
BEBEBBETEMOAZRFE)
BOHREM/IERBERLE - EHilt -

approximately RMB304,000 (2019: RMB2,946,000) had been # AN R ¥304,000L(ZF — N &F:
recognised and included in cost of sales. 2,946,000) ) 17 B B B & & 2 % 1#
REEW A A EM A -
Right to Returned Goods Asset 20. RO E Yz #EF
2020 2019
ZEZEF —NnF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE AR®TFT
Right to returned goods asset B &Y 2 #EF 920 2,319

The right to returned goods asset represents the Group’s right
to recover products from customers where customers exercise
their right of return under the Group’s returns policy. The Group
uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the
number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value
method.

REEENENRKRASEERER
REAEBEEEBRRITEEEEN
EPBROER ZEBMNABHEER
ME S & FABEEZEAMGT R
KEEHNHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables

21. EG R EfEUFIE

2020 2019
— == F _T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETE ARETT
Receivables within the scope of IFRS 15 7£ BIBX B 75 R & X B S5 1558
at amortised cost comprise: &0 [E] A #Y FE UK AR S R K
NEE
Trade receivables =N e 29,160 26,090
Less: allowance for impairment of trade & : 2 5 F& U 3k 18 5 (8 X 1
receivables (7,050) (4,612)
22,110 21,478
Prepayment for purchase of raw materials & B J& # £} 78 - 3% 680 2,103
Other prepayments H b T8 1 R I8 655 1,940
Non-income tax receivables IE BT 15 76 B U 3K 278 111
Other receivables H b & U 5k 480 421
24,203 26,053

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for impairment of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting

4

mL

AREEARFESEFTFHEEHR
BIOEIOK - AT ARFHREHK
REZODWAERBHANERAEH
2R EKE SRR (
SRR ERBE) W R DT o

B e W

period.
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR FIT
Less than 3 months LA 31E A 21,858 18,990
More than 3 months but less than % 318 A 18 LK 61E A

6 months 252 2,165

More than 6 months but less than ZR6EAEBLR121EA
12 months - 323
22,110 21,478
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtors’
current financial positions, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operated and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

As the trade receivables related to a number of customers with
common risk characteristics and the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s difference customer bases.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables based

on past due status of customers collectively that are not
individually significant as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

R-ZZE-ZEH+-A=+—H

Less than 3 months D HR31E A
More than 3 months but less % R 3@ A {8 L 61 A

than 6 months

More than 6 months but less
than 12 months

More than 12 months Z 1218 A

Z6fE A E D R121E A

21. E5 K H b FE U FRE (@)

AEBEFENEZREHAEBLRE
HEASENEARNAEREERX-
EWE 5RO FEREEBKER
BREERY2ZEBANBEER
G i MBS A B B AT AR o
m e A Er - XREHANE TR
E EHRARERETENEEL
EBERALEREE BB ERER
KB ARG NIRRT EL AR -

FEARREMEBAR - JFhH A
HOWEANRRTERAHRE -

HRARZERERSNZEAEEE
REREHENER BEAEEMNE
SEERABERITKRBIRAER
HENBERRATERZEEZR £
RBEBRRENBRBEERBHE
— RO KENTRETFE -

AEBERBEPOEBRKREK E
RIS NEEHE 5 EWKKIE - R
ERBHBEREERRAT

0.30% 21,923 65
16.38% 301 49
100% 276 276
100% 6,660 6,660

29,160 7,050
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 21. B 5 & H it FE W FXIE (@)
Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
g ¥ FREEER
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NAF+-_A=+—8 FBHIEXLXX 4= Rk (B ZE

% RMB’000 RMB’000
Bolk ARBTIT ARBTT

Less than 3 months LA 31E A 1.60% 19,299 309
More than 3 months but less %R 31E A8 4 A 61E A
than 6 months 23.57% 2,833 668
More than 6 months but less % 761 A 18 2 W 121E A
than 12 months 50.34% 650 327
More than 12 months Z R 121@ A 100% 3,308 3,308
26,090 4,612
The movements in the allowance for impairment of trade féf SEWHRTEREE K BEENE
receivables are set out below: D N
2020 2019
—T-FT&F —"ThNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE  AR®TRT

At 1 January R—A—H 4,612 10,590
Written off as uncollectible (note (a)) 85 A % Y B kIR (B 5 (a)) (346) (1,171)
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) BEE KRR/ (B #) 2,784 (4,807)
At 31 December nt+=—_A=+—H 7,050 4,612
Note: iz -
(a) The Group writes off trade receivables where there is information indicating that (a) MREEERA EFEMBE S EWREE
the debtor is in serve financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of REBATFEMBRRZE - 28 0 WE AR
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has g ASEPNEEAC K SENDEARE

entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs earlier. BFUUREE AE) -
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22. Bank Balances and Cash 2. BITHEERER S
As at 31 December 2020, cash at bank carries interest at RZEZZTF+_A=+—8" 48
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates of 0.001% to THESESBEETER S FEF
0.60% (2019: 0.001% to 0.60%) per annum. Z0.001%£060%( = T — L F:

0.001% & 0.60%) 5T & F| &,

23. Trade and Other Payables 23. B G N H B FIE
2020 2019
—Eo=E - hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTE  ARBTT

Trade payables 2 5 M 5RIE 35,108 32,561
Payable for acquisition of property, B BE X

plant and equipment HREEEER 1,933 1,933
Promotion fee payables EHEEEZR 8,681 8,250
Accrued payroll FENITE 2,833 1,902
Non-income tax payables FE BT 15 F FE 157 3K 1,681 3,233
Other payables and accruals HihENKIENTEIREER 30,901 27,797
81,137 75,676

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented BEZZEEH 2 HR2Z2E S EN
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: RERERPARZERSTWOT :
2020 2019
—Eo2E —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AE®TRT ARETT

Within 1 month or on demand 18 A mekiz 2k 26,839 25,195
After 1 month but within 3 months 1A ABERIEARA 8,269 7,366
35,108 32,561
The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. The AEHEELSTHEESEN ;j/\3o 190
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure Ho N&EB A MBER KRR

that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. ERRBRBAENZRBREEEE
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24. Contract Liabilities

25.

24. S ERE

2020 2019

— === F _T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE ARETT

Advances received to deliver goods ELEYE W 15,360 10,775
The significant change in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly CE_EFANEBENBEE 'mﬂzi
due to more sales orders were received from retailers. ERHANNTEREEIEZNH

EERIE-

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020
that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2020
is RMB10,775,000 (2019: RMB7,587,000). There was no
revenue recognised in the current year that related to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

HE—_ZT-_ZTF+ A= +—E
I EROEEERETHILES
—EF—-—AF—HBME 7%&AE%
10,775,000t (=& — N F : AR
7,587,0007T) c BHEEE F —FERETT
MNETEKREBENEEETELRAFE
TERUIA ©

Refund Liabilities 25. HEZEE

2020 2019

—E-EHF — N

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

Refund liabilities BEaE 1,450 3,894
The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return products BREAPEREEEEE=HA®%Z
within three months of purchase. At the point of sale, a refund BRERE -EHED EitewmR
liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is BIMERBAEEZRSET Wi
recognised for those products expected to be returned. The AEHEEAZ - ZEBEFBERE

Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate
the number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected
value method.

LG R R A
REMAKT EMERE
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26. Bank Borrowing 26.

Fixed-rate bank borrowing TE F R IR 17 8 5N

Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreement):

A FEE (RBE R &R E 82
ERAE)

2019

—E-hF

RMB’000

ARET T

Within one year —%FR - 9,650

Notes: B
() As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowing of approximately RMB9,650,000 (2020: (a) BE-_Z—hAhE+-_B=+—81 817
nil) bore interest at a fixed rate of 5.52% (2020: nil) per annum and due within B ARKE50,000T (=8 - F 4 :
one year. ) FEEFEK ALY (ZE T F
&) —FREE-

(b) As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowing was guaranteed by Mr. CHEN (0) BE-_ZT—NAFE+-_A=+—Hit " 8R1T

Qiyuan and secured by the Group’s land and buildings included in property,
plant and equipment with carrying amounts of approximately RMB3,186,000
(2020: nil) and the properties of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan.

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group has available unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately RMB500,000,000 (2019: RMB500,000,000).

27. Provision 27.

ERBERBURCERR THEERAEE
BEAHARKES186,00T(ZE-F 4% :
EINME BERRBENRBRTESN
BEMER-

REFRBR AEEREAHDRTERER
ZE 4 A AR 500,000,000 (=& —
N4+ AR HE500,000,0000T) ©

TIREE

At 1 January and 31 December

R—A—BM+=-A=+—H

Provision for litigation

HEERE A
2019
—E-hEF
RMB’000
ARETT
338 338

Details of the litigation are set out in note 35.

Bl

A

FFAMEE35 -
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28. Share Capital and Reserves 28. RAK &5
(@) Share capital (a) Bg=
Number of
shares
B EE

'000 RMB’000
T ARKTR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each &% 00.10 2 & @M%

Authorised: VR TR
At 1 January 2019, R—ZE—hE—H—H"

31 December 2019, —E-NAF+ZH=+—8"

1 January 2020 and :i/@:i/éi A—HB XK

31 December 2020 —E-FZF+_-_A=+—H 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid: BETRENZTERK:
At 1 January 2019 R—ZE—NhFE—H—H 3,161,811 277,878
Exercise of share options (note) ETERZSHERSTRE

(Mg 3%) 630 54

At 31 December 2019, RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H"

1 January 2020 and —EEF-—H—HAK

31 December 2020 —E-TF+=ZR=+—H 3,162,441 277,932

Note:  On 29 March 2019, 630,000 share options were exercised at HK$0.1 fisr: RZE—hAhE=BA=-1+hB  UFT

each and resulted in the issue of 630,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and increase in share capital of HK$63,000 (equivalent to
RMB54,000).

All shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2019 rank pari passu with existing shares in all respects.

& 7 Bhm“o 17T77 f# 7 630,00017 i A%
¥ - 154 Q A1 21T T 630,000 4%
B 80 T B #63,000T (A A
R #54,0007T) H J& A ©

BE-F-AET-A=+—

HIE - FIBEZETHRERER
HEREREZERS#ER -
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28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds in the
share premium are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 3.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves are established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the PRC subsidiary of the
Group, Bawang Guangzhou. Transfers to the
reserves are approved by the directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China) Beverage
Co., Ltd, which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer at
least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting prior year
losses), as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company Law and
the articles of association of the entity. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity shareholder.

28. R A K f#1 @)
(b) REBHEERASE

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Bz & & R

ARRBRA G ENERX
FMERSERAEEER)
FTRE - -FRRIFEBEREZIR
(NSNS R R -JNYN
BRRNEEREXEBH I
HOER  SAARAAR
FEBRANEERKRDIK

AR e

WA M

BY AR IEE /B RE
RITROBG  SERE
THHOR R BEREH
A3 X AT & AT R
REXRFERPER -

& TE R

AEREIREBRETE
ORI R AR D) A B 7K & [ 1)
TEREARBEERERMND
NEERRIL - EREEW
BEEBIEMNESZTSH
JE ©

BEERMEBIE(FE) K
BABERRR IR BEKL
MNEEE DK HAR
EhEeFRARAED -
R CH M & D 10% K F
i A O # IA 1 F B 8 &
BRIE-REERHE
EERBESREIRER
AENZERNARER
i TE H R 1 B AN #950% A
- EBREZFEBARR
A A DK E A #E
7°
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28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserves (Continued)

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by issuing new shares to equity
shareholders proportionate to their existing
percentage of equity interests provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International Group
Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired all the equity interest of
Bawang Guangzhou amounting to USD12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company owned by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Group, at a
consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, the
share capital of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated
and a merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the operations outside the PRC into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the Controlling Shareholders in the
form of non-interest bearing loans to a subsidiary.
The amounts are estimated by discounting the
nominal value of the non-interest bearing loans to
the subsidiary at an effective interest rate.

28. A K f#1E @)
(b) 01 R AE(®)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

& TE 0 (48)

—ROKTE W 7] R 1E o
NEFENBR(E)
TRAE B IRERET A A
MR ANREE DL AR
FETHB LS E R
BEBRRRA HETA
BRITRONEHRIBIRN
A EARE25% °

& O & i

RZEZE+F+=_A=+
H ARa2EHB AR A
HBIHBREEEZERES)
ER DR LAREEKUWE
% JT12,500,000H) B £ &
M2 E0HE %= (2 B B 15 AR
BRRBEBN — KR HF
) A &FELTEIMNAK
AWK HEENIE D
EHEXAHEE-

B R o 0

ERFEERRREREE
SN TS 2 B # k(B A
RE)FMEENZAER
EE -

H fih & i

Hib B REERRRE
RRHBARNREER
FELZBRIEE - &%ZH
BERAERM TR E
MTRAZREERHK
HEERGEE -
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2. LR BEEEIL R HE
BHRS

() BROMEEMMEARES

29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(@) Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Directors approved a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
on 10 December 2008. On 8 June 2009, the Company
conditionally granted certain Pre-IPO share options to the
Directors, senior management and employees under this
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise of these
share options would entitle two of the Company’s
Directors to subscribe for an aggregate of 4,200,000
shares of the Company, and forty of senior management
and employees for an aggregate of 10,332,000 shares.
According to the grant letters signed by the Company and
the beneficial individuals, the exercise price of each share
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is either at par
value of HK$0.1 (four people under this tranche including
two the then directors), or at HK$1.19, representing a
50% discount to the offer price of HK$2.38 under the
global offering (thirty-eight people under this tranche).
Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has a vesting period of one to five years,
commencing from the listing date and the options are
exercisable until 8 June 2020. During the year ended 31
December 2019, a total of 956,760 share options granted
on 8 June 2009 have been lapsed upon the expiry of
option period. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
other than exercise of the 630,000 options, all the
remaining Pre-IPO share options have been lapsed upon
the expunge of option period.

EEeR_ZEENF+_AT+
Bt EF X AREESRERKR
EiHE - R _ZTEZAFNAN
H ARABHBREBREE X
AHRBERBERESIAE
E SAETEEKRENREER
FETERAARABERBER
HEoTHEUHEEBRER TARQ
AMEZEERBEARAAHK
4,200,0000% = LA R40% & %
EEEMEERBAQFRMN
4 #10,332,000 A% H #E F o 1R
BAQREBEZZARIN
BRYPEHG BRXAMEE/E
IREFEIE T ERRMDITE
BEAHEBMMESTOIUAREIL
Pl B BEMBES) BT
119 AL 2 RBEE THEE
7 JC2.389T #50% (38 A F£ It
B - MBERAFBEEER
BAEEENSNERENS
B AR tHEBHE —F&
AFE - FAEBREBELNAEAR-Z
—NENANBRIITE . RE
E2-F—-—NF+=-A=+—8H
HTFEFER E-_ZETHLENA
J\ B 3 7 H956,76010 BE A% HE
ERHERREAN - REE
—E2-NF+-A=+—8%F
E A - B 7 171¥630,000 % # HA
B EME R MBS
AR R EAREE RN HARE B W 2 B
KA o
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions 0. UREEELURD AE

(Continued) R 5 E)
(@) Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued) () BRABAREREARERS
(#8)
Details of specific categories of Pre-IPO Share Options HRAHEMAERETS A
Scheme are as follows: AR
Number of Contractual life
Date of grant instruments Vesting period of options
BTEH BREHE BEE BRESHE
Options granted to directors 8 June 2009 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
RTESHBRE e A DAN= —ETNELA=RER —F +4
8 June 2009 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
“ZTAEXNANR “ETNELRA=REHME T#
8 June 2009 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTAERANR “ETNFERA=HEBH=ZF T4
8 June 2009 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTNERANE —ETNELA=ZREFNE +4
8 June 2009 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
“ZTAEAXANR —ZTNELAZAEHIEE T#
Options granted to employees 8 June 2009 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
BT EE MRk E —ZEZNFANE “EENFLAZHEH—F T4
8 June 2009 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTNERANE “ZTNELA=ZHERAHME T4#
8 June 2009 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTNERANA “ZETNELAZAEHZSE T#
8 June 2009 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZZNERANE “EENFLAZHEHEF T4
8 June 2009 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTNERANE “ZTNELAZHRHEE T4
Total share options granted 14,532,000

BT BRELHR
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions 29. l«/{ﬂ BEEELURODA/E

(Continued) B % ‘é

(b) The following table disclosed the movements of the (b) TREBEBHE_ZT-—NF+=
Company’s share options held by Directors and A=Z+—HBILEEEEKESR
employees for the year ended 31 December 2019: EAREZ S :

Exercise
Date of grant Exercisable period price

izl ATEAE THE
Directors 8 June 2009 4 July 2014-8 June 2019 HK$0.10 630,000 (630,000) - -
5% —ZTNE “ZT-NFtAMABE %7010
~NANE ZE-NF~NANHE
Employees 8 June 2009 4 July 2014-8 June 2019 HK$1.19 956,760 —  (956,760) -
== ZTTNEF —Z-mELAME Eria9
~NANE ZE-NAFXANAE
Total 1,586,760 (630,000) (956,760) -
At
Exercisable at the
end of the year
RE KRB AI{T{E
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.77 HK$0.10 HK$1.19 N/A
METFHTEE #Bm0.77 #m0.10 Ei.19 TEH
In respect of the share options exercised during the year RNEBEE_Z2—hEF+_B=+
ended 31 December 2019, the weighted average share —HIEE E 1T B BB P&
price at the date of exercise was HK$0.167 (equivalent to TEEEOMEESEAE T

RMBO0.147). 0.167(HHE R AR ®0.1477T) ©
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions
(Continued)

(c) 2020 share option scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 29 May 2020, the Company adopted a 2020
share option scheme (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”)
to attract and retain the best available personnel to
provide additional incentive to (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
business or joint venture partner or adviser of or contractor
to the Group or a company in which the Group holds an
interest or a subsidiary of cush company (the “Affiliate”); or
(i) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, business or joint venture
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate; or (i) a company beneficially owned by any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, business or joint venture partner, adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted and may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Option
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of their respective associates
(including a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
includes a substantial shareholder, independent non-
executive directors, or any of their respective associates)
in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

No share options were granted under the 2020 Share
Option Scheme since the adoption. As at 31 December
2020, there were no outstanding options granted under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the 30. XA B B AR SR R
Company
2020 2019
—EoFEfF @ —ZT—AE
Notes | RMB’000 RMB’000

iz PARSTE | ARBTT

Non-current assets EREBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries R 3 E T i B A 7 63& & —* —*
Current assets REEE
Other receivables N e 354 319
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE i Bft /BB~ &) 5K IE (@) 2,300 7,130
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRIA® 515 404
3,169 7,853
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b & 1< 518 1,033 1,830
Amount due to a subsidiary FE S MY B A 7l 318 (a) 2,599 2,768
3,632 4,598
Net current (liabilities)/assets R (BB /EERE (463) 3,255
Net (liabilities)/assets (BB)/EEZRE (463) 3,255
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital 5% 7 277,932 277,932
Reserves & (b) (278,395) (274,677)
(Deficiency of equity)/total equity (T2 )/ E % (463) 3,255
* Less than RMB1,000 * ZERERAREL0007T -
Approved by the Board of Directors and are signed on its behalf REFSHAESTH NIWATRAEE
by: =
CHEN Qiyuan CHEN Zheng He
R BUR R IE#5

(Director) (% %) (Director) (% %)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

@)

30. AN B B #& AR R 3/ @)

B &
The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. (@ ZREEAR RETRERER -BE
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Directors have ZEEFR-T-NF+ZR=+—
performed an impairment assessment based on the expected credit loss HIEFE ZEFMREBHEEBRAER
model. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of amounts due from ETTHREFB B2 -_TF+=-A
subsidiaries was approximately RMB2,300,000 (2019: RMB7,130,000), net of =t+—Hit EBKNBAREESELNS
accumulated allowance for impairment loss of approximately AR®2300,00L(ZF—LF: ARK
RMB1,577,248,000 (2019: RMB1,649,750,000). 7,130,0007T) * MR ZEFREBEEFHOAR
#1,677,248000C (Z T — NF: ARK
1,649,750,0007T) °
Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: (o) EEFRNEEHBEROT
Share Capital Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BRAHE EXREE EREE RitEBR waE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFTT ARBTT
(note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))
(MI#E28(0)) (FiFFE28(b))  (Ff FE28(b))
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE—hhF—HF—H 1,400,650 2,814 (111,054) (1,561,528) (269,118)
Total comprehensive expense 4F A1 2 H 5% i 42 58
for the year — — (821) (5,238) (5,559)
Effect of share options BRENTE
— Shares issue upon exercise — 1714 21T 2 I 1D
(note 28) (Pt 2% 28) 1,165 (1,165) = - -
— Lapse — & — (1,649) = 1,649 =
At 31 December 2019 and R-E—h&E+_-_A=+—H
1 January 2020 E=—ZE=ZFF—HF—H 1,401,815 — (111,375) (1,565,117) (274,677)
Total comprehensive income/ 4 A2 E YW A/ (52 1) 458
(expense) for the year — — 997 (4,715) (3,718)
At 31 December 2020 R-_E-_ZTF+_-_H=+—H 1,401,815 — (110,378) (1,569,832) (278,395)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

31. Capital Commitments 31. EAREIE

2020 2019
—E-FF T NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETT

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition < 7& Bf 7 3} & $1 [ it

of property, plant and equipment contracted W EABEME  H&E

but not provided in the consolidated financial R B AR

statements 343 343

32. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(a)

(b)

The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

Hong Kong

The Group also maintains the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong in accordance with
the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and related regulations. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, of
which the contribution was matched by employees and
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per employee.

The Group has no other obligations for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contribution described above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB1,250,000 (2019: RMB4,108,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans.

32.

3B AR AR R T &K

(@) FEXEME

RETEBAHELESER
MEQRZSEMPEBREE
BT # 8 AR A 2 E R SRR
®A G & (%81 - A R
BRAAIAKRBRIEZ—EAS
b A 3% Rt B K o B BT
BEREXNEKREENES
BIRE -

(b) FERBE

RiERSE LB ([T
ZETEIDMBBIERD RRE
AEENSHAENAKENE
BRERERURESAE BT
TR ZEERASEEME
EDH BXEAZGZES
FHE - AKEZBEBIEZ5%
AEtEHER BREBEHHEHR
FRAE 1,500 °

AEBERT LA RS WEE
i E % AR E AT RR R EAMRAK
‘@A o

EakxP 2 B8HITHARE
1,250,000 Z & — L F: AR K
4,108,000) - B AN & B gtz 51 81 %l
EM—TEB DB ZHR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =-TF+=-A=+—HILFE

33. Related Party Transactions 3B.BEHERS
(a) Related party balances (a) RABESERER
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial MRGEEHERESEHEIN
statements, the following balances were outstanding at NEREBAREMKEN &5 W
the end of the reporting period: N

Maximum outstanding
Amounts due from/(to) amount during the year
related parties ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-BL%E

FE e/ () BB 7 RKOR EANBSREAEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
—T-2F _T-NF ZBSTE _TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARSTT ARETE ARETT

Non-trade related kEZHE
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao Supply Chain - & /] /)M it [ 38 & 32

Management Co. Ltd BRAR(EMN])

(“Guangzhou Xiaoxiao”) (note i) (B 250 - - - 8
Guangzhou Bawang Intemational ~ EMNBIEEAXBERR

Hotel Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou AR(EMBLER])

Bawang International’) (note ii (B i) - 101 101 101
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., EMBE (iR ERA A

Ltd. (‘Guangzhou Bawang’) (note i)  ([B /N & F ) (BT zEii) 242 242 242 346
Trade related EZHH
Guangzhou Bawang (note if) BN & T (B i) - - - 4,266
Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products /N T & &R B[R A A

Company Limited (“Guangzhou (TEMEmR])

Chenming’) (notes iii and iv) (B FEiiFiv) - 1,150 1,150 1,150

242 1,493

Trade related E5H
Guangzhou Chenming B = 8 (T A v)

(notes iii and v) @ -
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging EMNTEXRBEMRER

Materials Co., Ltd. (‘Guangzhou AR(TEMEBER]

Qiancai”) (notes iii and v) (Bt i Av) (72 (47)

(74) (47)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE =T =ZTF+=-A=+—HILFE

33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(a) Related party balances (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

)

Guangzhou Xiaoxiao’s sole director was Ms. WAN Yuhua, mother of
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive officer and executive director
of the Company. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Guangzhou Bawang International and Guangzhou Bawang were
ultimately 100% owned by Mr. CHEN Zheng He. The balance was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the management
of the Group considered the credit risk of the amounts has not been
increased significantly and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the control
of the close family members of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the director and the
chairman of the board of directors.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group prepaid a trade deposit for
purchase of packaging materials to Guangzhou Chenming. The credit
term granted by Guangzhou Chenming is based on the invoice date.

The credit term granted by Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days based on the
invoice date. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the amount due to
Guangzhou Qiancai was unsecured, interest-free with 30 days (2019:
30 days) credit term and aged within 30 days (2019: 30 days).

33. Bt AR F @)

(a) FRBEX R (1)
B3

0 BN -—EREEFELLE
AEBEEFEHRITENRATESRE
BEENTH - ARBSREEN
RERWIEBREE -

(i) EMBEBEBRMEMNELARES
K AE100% R K HEH - A W& HRE
A 2ERUIEBRERE -

BE_ZT-_ZFR-ZT-NF+=
A=t—-RLFE A&HEEEE
RREERREE —ELFEREL
o B A T RE AR RO R (B R 2
BR1I2EANEREERR - K=
ZoEFEN_F-AF+-A=1
—H ERHRERAZIFEL N
o

(iii BMEBEMEMNGEREHEARAR
EEEIFERARLEBEZIN
REERK BRI ©

M RE-F-AF+=A=+-8:
AKBEN T W E RN RSB B
BEOE SRR BMEBE T
ERBRAEEAMAE -

) HEMNBRGETHEERAEZE
HEORA -HE_ZT_ZFTFEK=-ZF
—NF+ZA=+—81t ENHE
MERWBBEERERF 30K
2B (ZT—NF:30K) 30KA
FE(ZZE—NF :30K) °
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33. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 33. B AR B @)
(b) Related party transactions (b) ABA XS
The Group had the following material transactions with its AEE AR ALTETUT
related parties: EARH

2020 2019

—BEHF —T-NF

Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000

XEME AR®BTR ARBT T

Guangzhou Bawang International Meeting and catering service

expenses (notes i and iv) - 227
J& )N %5 T B R 2ZRERRBE (FFFiMiv)
Sales of materials (notes i and iv) - 27

HE MK (B sEifIv)

Guangzhou Chenming Purchase of packaging materials
(notes i and iii) — 3,898
AN B 5K 3R (P B AN
Guangzhou Qiancai Purchase of packaging materials
(notes i and iv) 202 146
ERURERS BR M BHEREE K (B aEifMiv)
Guangzhou Bawang Rental fee of production plant and
office premises (notes i, i and iii) 8,234 8,638
BMEE HEREM{DZHMOES
(Pl i, i A iii)
Notes: MR
0] The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were 0] EERAE LRSS HIR—BEE
conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of BERARBEEBBRERPET X5
business and the basis of consideration for the transactions is the REEEABEITHE -

prevailing market price.



BIEREE)ZERERAH

—ECEEER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

£ © Bl 85 ¥R 2% Bl GX (48)
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33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

)

On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into a lease agreement with 3 years terms of lease from 1
December 2017. The monthly rental fee for the production premises,
office premises and a staff dormitory are approximately RMB719,000 in
total. Details of which were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 1 December 2017. On 17 November 2020, Bawang Guangzhou
and Guangzhou Bawang entered into a new lease agreement with 1
year of lease from 1 December 2020. The monthly rental fee for the
production premises, office premises and a staff dormitory are
RMB1,040,000 in total. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 November 2020. As at 31 December 2020,
the carrying amount of such lease liabilities is approximately
RMB11,143,000 (2019: RMB30,781,000). During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group has made lease payment of approximately
RMB8,264,000 (2019: RMB8,638,000) to the related company.

The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the “Report of the Directors” section to the annual
report.

The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

33. BB

R 5 (&)

(b) BREEF X5 (&)

o E

(i

(i)

)

(&)

R-_ZE—+&E+_-_F—H HBIE
MEFEMNBETEXBE RS 8 —
A—RE HEHRAE-ZT—t
F+-_ARIFE-LXERE B2
SRS IEENAHEEBETHNA
AR®719,0007T - FIF#HA QA F =
T+ E+A-BABHBHRE-
RZZE-ZEF+—A+tH &FE
EMNAENBIFRET —OREE
WE - -WABMAIBIEEA_-Z
—EE+ A HHBAR—F
MFHEERZ AHSATOAA
R #1,040,0007C ° FEEH R AR =
T_EFE+ AT LEBHHRE-
R-ZZE-_TFE+_A=+—HItE
EREEENEREBAENAARE
11,143,000 (=2 — 16 : AR
30,781,0007T) c B E T T F +
ZAZt+-—ALFE £ECAE
BN R AT A R %8,264,000
THHEHS(ZZE—ALF: AR
8,638,0007T) °

BB ARXIER ETRNE4AE
FIATHBMEXSAFERER
S FHABFUAZTELNEE
EEFEREEFERE] —EF

2751

BT Z5FA LTRSS UAE
FIRENBEERSRFTEBER
5 BREERRETFTLETRAUE
14AR PR 2R EE -
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33. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 33. BERF RS @)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) EEEEAE RN
The remuneration of key management personnel of the AREBRFRIEEEAED
Group during the year was as follows: & &5
2019
—E-hNF
RMB’000
ARETT
Short-term benefits SRR | 4,947 4,162
Post-employment benefits B B 12 18 A 251 428
Termination benefits Bt iR 12 A - 500
5,198 5,090
The remuneration of key management personnel of the NEBFBTEEEAE ZHMME
Group was determined by the board of Directors, in EERAT N EeRHERE
consultation with the remuneration committee, having ARBELEMISBOETH -
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
34. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from M AMETHEENESHER
Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRAMAER KA E IHNE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash EEH MEEHELANBEREN
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for S heaEARBEREBEESR
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in S hERPLYEARMELTHR SR

the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from ENEBE-
financing activities.

Bank borrowing RITIE N 9,650 (9,693) 43 = -
Lease liabilities MEEE 31,132 (8,264) 1,191 (12,578) 11,481
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34. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from

CREEHELENEEYHR

Financing Activities (Continued) (&)
Financing
1 January 2019 cash flows 31 December 2019
— N & —E-hF
—H—H REmE +=—HA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®TT AR T T
Bank borrowing PWITHEE 12,550 (2,900) 9,650
Lease liabilities HEAE 38,133 (7,001) 31,132

35. Litigation

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former subcontractor
against Bawang (China) Beverage Co., Limited (“Bawang
Beverage”) in People’s Court of Songjiang District of Shanghai
in respect of a dispute in the material processing contract
between the former subcontractor and Bawang Beverage.

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate People’s Court
gave its final ruling that Bawang Beverage was liable to the
former subcontractor for an amount of approximately
RMB643,000 and a legal cost of approximately RMB19,000.
Accordingly, provision for litigation in amount of approximately
RMB662,000 was recognised in the profit or loss and an
amount of approximately RMB324,000 was settled in 2014. As
at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the remaining provision of
approximately RMB338,000 has not been settled.

35. JEEFFA

PR —RADHEE LERIE
AEERBRZAN D EEEBE (P
B) #R A R A R (T8 E 8B ]) 2
BRI A RS M E T KRR
RS

FPBEE—FRARZERER-_ZF —
MENAZTBEEL&KRE R B
ITHRBMEAMSPERINHOAR
# 643,000 BEE S MO AR
19,000 T K FFFAE © LN + FRAART IR
A4 AR 662,000 21K FE R R
GAEBERENEMEERERPAE
mER - 4 ARK324,000TE EEH
E-FE—NF+-_A=+— Eutﬁ
EREEZE - #HE_T_TFM_-
—NF+_A=+—HLEFE" ,0
A R # 338,000 7T B T & 51 12 181 K 45
:@:o
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36. Principal Subsidiaries

36.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and
paid-up/registered

H

Al

2%

i

—

Proportion ownership interest and

FEME LA

TECEFR_FE-NF+A
+—8"
n

RRABEEZWMERAFF

Name and operation  capital voting power held by the Company  Principal activities
ARAHAENEER
% RYRBEHE BERTRARER BENRRELH TEXR
2020 2019
=t b “F-NE
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
B BE|@ BEE Ak
% % % %
Forever Giants Limited BVI USD1 100 - 100 — Inactive
Forever Giants Limited EBRZHS F1 FRNEEL
Bawang International Group ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding and trading of
Holding (HK) Limited household and personal care
products
BIEREEER(FE) FE T REERREHRKA K
ARRA BAAERE R
Hong Kong Bawang Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Trading of household and personal
International Trading Limited care products
EBEBIBRESHAA s T EHXAREAERER
Bawang Guangzhou (note (a)) The PRC USD67,500,000 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of
household and personal care
products
BEEM(PH3E@) HE % 71.67,500,000 HEREHZARAAERER
Bawang Beverage (note (@) ~ The PRC HK$180,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
BEHH (@) HE 7 71.180,000,000 FREEH
Guangzhou Fanmei Electronic - The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 — 100 e-Commerce and trading of
Business Company Limited* household and personal care
(note (a)) products
BINRBEFHEERAT HE AR %1,000,0007C ETHBREHRAREAZRE
(F¥7E (@) Em
Guangzhou Bawang Trading ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Trading of household and personal
Company Limited* (note (a)) care products
BINBEEFERAR H AR #1,000,0007T EHXAREAERER
(P 7% (@)
Note: B
(a) These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies (@) HEEEANPRRKIMINEL2EERAY
established in the PRC. EREERA
* For identification purposes only * EHRR
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36. Principal Subsidiaries (Continued) 36. TEME LT @
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the FEREINEARARIEERATEY
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets BREFEEENEEMNABZHE
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries NEl e KR A EEREREMEH MM
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of BRARZzHEBBSERBRITEM
excessive length. NEUEFHTR o
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the REERE—FEHR - BEEM
end of both years or at any time during the years. ME AR BITEMERER -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other REFRE R RrEAEMRE
wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A MEIEEANETENWNB AR 2%
summary of these subsidiaries are as follows: B ARz EBEBHmT

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2020 2019
FTEEK FTEEKMR —2-FF _—_THF
Investment holding The BVI 2 2
REEK REELHES
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1

BREER BB
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hEM TS

As at 31 December 2020 R=ZE=FF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E2_TFE —T-NF ZFT-N\F ZT—+tF ZT—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETT ARETRT ARBTT AR%®FTr
Results E
Revenue &R 275,987 258,158 293,922 264,215 264,229
(Loss)/profit before taxation # Aif (E548) /5] H (4,038) (15,164) (1,196) 19,231 41,094
Taxation I8 - 9,064 — (4) 2,610
(Loss)/profit for the year 7N R BB A FEAE
attributable to the owners 2 € X (F518) /
of the Company b (4,038) (6,100) (1,196) 19,227 43,704
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Property, plant and M BB R
equipment 78,699 98,305 115,021 132,403 137,237
Prepaid advertising fee ENEESER 33 — 649 392 212
Biological assets EYEE - = = = 457
Net current assets mEEEFE 65,499 53,732 50,661 37,843 13,305
Total assets less current & 2= 48 {E R &)
liabilities =R 155,051 182,426 165,682 170,246 150,542
Net assets EEZFAE 154,726 158,660 165,682 170,246 150,542
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital A% 7R 277,932 277,932 277,878 277,878 277,878
Reserves & (123,206) (119,272) (112,196) (107,632) (127,336)
Total equity R 154,726 158,660 165,682 170,246 150,542
(Loss)/earning per share & (5 18) /& F|
Basic and diluted (RMB) ~ E 7 [ # 58
(AR®) (0.0013) (0.0019) (0.0008) 0.006 0.01
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BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited
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